PAJARO/SUNNY MESA

. COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
136 San Juan Road, Royal Oaks, CA 95076
O (831) 722-1389 | Fax (831) 722-2137
www.pajarosunnymesa.com

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DISTRICT CONFERENCE BOARD ROOM
136 SAN JUAN ROAD, ROYAL OAKS, CA 95076

AUGUST 27, 2020
5:30 P.M.

“Notice of Teleconferenced Meeting”

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’'s March 17, 2020 Executive Order N-29-20

regarding COVID-19, members of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services
District Board of Directors and staff may participate in this meeting by
teleconference.

To reduce the spread of COVID-19, members of the public may listen to the
meeting via teleconference by calling 1-425-436-6355 and entering passcode
407147 and then the pound sign (“#"). There will be no in-person participation in
the meeting under the authority of Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20.
You may also submit written comments in writing either at District Offices in
person or by email by 2:00 pm on August 27, 2020.

To submit a comment by email, please send to info@pajarosunnymesa.com and
write “Public Comment” in the subject line. Include the item number and/or title
of the item in the body of the email and your comments. All comments received
by 2:00 pm will be emailed to the Board members and included as an “Add to
Packet” on the District's website before the meeting. Those comments received
after 2:00 pm will be added to the record of the meeting and shared with Board
members at the meeting.”

The Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District welcomes you to its meetings
regularly scheduled on the fourth Thursday of each month, and your interest and
participation is encouraged and appreciated.

Contact the District office at the email address or telephone number above if you believe
you require any modification or accommodation for any disability which might impair your
ability to participate in the meeting.

B

1



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — August 27, 2020

Documents provided to the District after the agenda has been published will be available at the District office
and available for photocopying during ordinary business hours as Public Records at the cost set by resolution
by the Board from time to time. This is ordinarily $.25 per page. Documents provided to the Board for agenda
items will ordinarily be placed on the District website if time permits. Otherwise, late documents will be provided
to the Board at the meeting and a copy placed with the agendas available to the Public at Board meetings.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need

special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Pajaro Sunny Mesa Community Services
District ar (831) 722-1389 before the meeting to allow the District to make reasonable accomodations.

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
o (11/21) President Harry Wiggins

o (11/21) Vice President Sanford Coplin
o (11/23) Secretary Robert Moody
o (11/23) Assistant Secretary Darlene Lamboley
o (11/21) Treasurer Michael Moore
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: General Manager Don Rosa
Recorder Judy Vazquez-Varela
DISTRICT COUNSEL: Attorney Alan Smith

3. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA [SUBDIVISION (b), GOVERNMENT CODE § 54954.2]

The Board may act on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda if (1) three members
determine that an emergency (as defined in Section 54956.5 exists), (2) two-thirds vote of the members
present, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those members present,
determine that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of
the District after the agenda was being or (3) the item was posted for a prior Board meeting not more than
five calendar days before the date action is taken, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the
meeting at which action is taken. Before discussing any item pursuant to this subdivision, the Board will
publicly identify the item.

4. COMMENTS FROM PUBLIC OR MEMBERS OF BOARD ON ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA

Any person may address the Board on any item not on the agenda when recognized by the
Board President.

Any Board member may comment on any item not on the agenda.

ACTION ITEMS

Consent Agenda

Any person may comment on any item on the consent agenda.

1. DRAFT MINUTES OF JULY 23, 2020 REGULAR MEETING

Approval of draft minutes for regular meeting on 7/23/2020

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director
Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:

P.

2



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — August 27, 2020

Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Harry Wiggins
(11/21) Vice President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Secretary Robert Moody
(11/23) Assistant Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Treasurer Michael Moore

(o]

O 00O

Old Business:

1. NONE

New Business:

1. REVIEW AND MOTION TO APPROVE DRAFT FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR JULY 2020

- Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

-Public Input

-Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve Draft Financial Reports July 2020

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:
Roll Call Vote:

o (11/21) President Harry Wiggins
o (11/21) Vice President Sanford Coplin
o (11/23) Secretary Robert Moody
o (11/23) Assistant Secretary Darlene Lamboley
o (11/21) Treasurer Michael Moore

2. REVIEW AND MOTION TO APPROVE CHECKS AND DIRECT STAFF TO SIGN

CHECKS
1. General Fund 605: Check # through check # for a total of $
2. Water Account: Check # through check # for a total of $
3. Holding Acct: Check # through check # for a total of $
4. Street Maint. Acct: Check # through check # for a total of $
5. Reorganization Acct:  Check # through check # for a total of $
6. Construction Acct: Check # through check # for a total of $
7. Acct: Check # through check # for a total of $

-Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

-Public Input

-Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

- Motion to Approve checks and direct staff to sign checks



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — August 27, 2020

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:
Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Harry Wiggins
(11/21) Vice President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Secretary Robert Moody
(11/23) Assistant Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Treasurer Michael Moore

o}

O 00O

3. WATER RATE STUDY

e Copy of Draft Report
e Consider acceptance of report with possible edits to final report

- Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

-Public Input

- Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Accept Draft Report with edits to final report, completion date of September 24,2020

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director
Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:

Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Harry Wiggins
(11/21) Vice President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Secretary Robert Moody
(11/23) Assistant Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Treasurer Michael Moore

O 00CO

4. RESOLUTION # 08-01-20 AUTHORIZING GENERAL MANAGER TO APPLY FOR
FUNDING AND SIGN AND SUBMIT APPLICATION FOR FUNDING FROM THE
DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND

e Springfield Water Project

- Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

- Public Input

- Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve adoption of Resolution # 08-01-20

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:
Roll Call Vote:

o (11/21) President Harry Wiggins
o (11/21) Vice President Sanford Coplin
o (11/23) Secretary Robert Moody
[e]
o

(11/23) Assistant Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Treasurer Michael Moore

P. 4



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — August 27, 2020

5. RESOLUTION # 08-02-20 APPROVING APPLICATION FOR PER CAPITA GRANT
PROGRAM

District staff working with Office of Grants and Local Services (OGALS)
District has been allocated $177,952 for Pajaro Park Capital Outlay
Copy of allocation list

List of possible project expenditures

-Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

- Public Input

-Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve adoption of Resolution # 08-02-20

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:

Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Harry Wiggins
(11/21) Vice President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Secretary Robert Moody
(11/23) Assistant Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Treasurer Michael Moore

o 0 0 00

6. 2020-2021 LIGHTING ASSESSMENT

Set Protest Hearing date for October 22, 2020 at 5:30 pm
Copy of example notice / letter

Copy of lighting District information

Copy of yearly cost comparison

-Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

-Public Input

- Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve 2020-2021 Lighting Assessment and Set Hearing for October 22, 2020

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:
Roll Call Vote:

o]

(11/21) President Harry Wiggins
(11/21) Vice President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Secretary Robert Moody
(11/23) Assistant Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Treasurer Michael Moore

[o RN RN eRNe)

P.

5



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — August 27, 2020

STAFF/COMMITTEE REPORTS: (INFORMATION ONLY, NO ACTION)

This part of agenda is for the Staff to report to the Board on District operations however no action is
agendized and no action may be taken other than asking for an action item to be brought to the
Board at a future meeting.

1. Possible grant funding source identified for the purpose of Pajaro Tank #1
rehabilitation
o  Staff working with Karen Nilsen, funding consultant
e  Engineers estimate is $750k to $1M

2. Cal-OES
e Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) funding - $150,000
e  Application has been approved for funding consideration
° If funded, District will contract with consultant to generate the LHMP

3. District Wide Generator Project
e Board requested of staff to review project scope and cost in attempt to identify cost saving
potential
o  Copy of staff report

4. Local wildland fires — Impact on Operators
o  JPIArecommendations

o All employees work indoors when poor air quality exists

o Water quality labs
) Both labs utilized by the District are available with limited staffing
o No impact to date

5. ‘District Operations Update: changes due to COVID-19 and “Shelter in Place” order

District office will remain open with strict guidelines
District Parks have been closed
Copies of notice at District Office and list of duties for Office
No vendors or members of public are allowed into Office
Payments are being received; no change given
District has a verbal agreement in place for Mutual Aid with both Castroville Community Services
District and Aromas Water District. District Counsel is working on a written agreement.
e President Wiggins and Vice President Coplin conducted a conference call with District
General Manager and Operations Manager to plan for “worst case scenario”

o President now has District Office keys and alarm codes and has advised staff to
have Operations Manuals, keys to faciliies and system maps readily available on
the conference room table

o  Contact info for all Board Members, employees and vendors are in the binder

o Notices mailed to customers with May bills indicating that their water is safe and unaffected
by COVID-19 (copy included)
o Office remains closed to public; continuing to take payments by phone or drop-off
o Office will be at full staffing beginning July 6, 2020 with physical distancing requirements met and
health screening protocols in place; masks or face coverings to be worn at all times while indoors.
All field personnel to work from home (stand-by) when air quality is bad

P

6



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — August 27, 2020

6. District Operations Report

7. Usage Comparison Report 2013/2020

CLOSED SESSION:

A. Public Comments for Closed Session

Any person may address the Board on any item on the Closed Session Agenda after
being recognized by the Board President.

Conference with Legal Counsel- Existing Litigation (Government Code § 54957)

1. AWC Holdings Trust and AWC Il Holdings Trust vs the County of Monterey

through its Board of Supervisors et al Case No. 18CV001746, Monterey County
Superior Court, filed May 11, 2018

2. Steve Pacheco, Trustee of the Salinas Land Holding Trust vs Pajaro/Sunny Mesa
Community Services District et al Case No. (consolidated with above case),
Monterey County Superior Court, filing date unknown

B. Return to Open Session and Report out of Closed Session

Any final action taken by the Board in closed session required under Government Code § 54957.1 will be
reported in open session at this time.

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Next Board meeting date:

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director
Ayes: Noes: ' Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:

Adjournment Time: p.m.

" P

7



MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District Board of Directors via
teleconference was called to order at 4:31 pm on July 23, 2020.

ROLL CALL: President Harry Wiggins
Vice President Sanford Coplin
Secretary Robert Moody
Assistant Secretary Darlene Lamboley

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: General Manager Don Rosa
Bookkeeper Amy Saldate
Recorder Judy Vazquez-Varela

ABSENT DIRECTOR(S) & STAFF: Treasurer Michael Moore

DISTRICT COUNSEL: Alan Smith

ADDITION(S) TO AGENDA: None

PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE: None

PUBLIC COMMENTS: None
Action ltems
1. Consider and approve the Minutes of the June 25, 2020 Regular Board Meeting

Motion was made by Director Wiggins and seconded by Director Coplin to approve the
Regular Board Meeting Minutes of June 25, 2020. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: H. Wiggins; S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

OLD BUSINESS: None

NEW BUSINESS: (Action ltems)

1. Review and consider approving the Financial Reports for June 2020

Motion made by Director Moody and seconded by Director Lamboley to approve the June
2020 Financials and Checks. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: H. Wiggins; S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore

Abstain: None

P

8



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - July 23, 2020 at

MONTHLY EXPENDITURES REPORT FOR REVIEW
APPROVAL OF CHECKS:

2,

1.

Review and consider approving of checks and directing Staff to sigh checks

Generdl Fund 633: None

2. Operating Account: Check No. 24396 through Check No. 24434 for a total of $182,374.41

3.

Reserve Account: Total of $47,374.41

Street Maintenance Account: Check No. 521 for a total of $241.58

Pajaro Park Account: Total of $1,085.04

COP 2010 Account: Total of $365,574.13

Debt Service Reserve Account: None

Motion was made by Director Wiggins, seconded by Director Lamboley to approve the June
2020 Checks, and direct Staff to sign checks. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: H. Wiggins; S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley
Noes: None
Absent; M. Moore
Abstain: None

Review and consider District Wide Generator Project: Finance decision for use in Water Rate
Study

General Manager Rosa would like for the Board to agree on a method of financing the District
Wide ‘Generator Project to include the information in the Water Rate Study and review
proposed rate increase. Although bond issuance causes high debt for the District, it would be
lower impact on the rate payer. General Manager Rosa presented the Board with bond
issuance examples to discuss the potential monthly impact on the rate payer.

o 30vyear-$6.16

o 25vyear-$6.75

o 20vyear-$7.67

General Manager Rosa also presented the Board with the Santa Cruz County Bank Finance
proposal, potential monthly impact on rate payer.
e $13.00

General Manager Rosa suggested choosing 20-year bond to be integrated info rate schedule.
The Board members discussed financing for the least amount of time and the burden this would
place on the rate payer. Also, discussed option of 25 years bond for an approximate.$1.00 less
impact on rates and a finance increase of $200,000.

9



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - July 23, 2020 P 10

The Board Directed General Monc&ger Rosa to prepare a proposal exploring options where
cost saving can be redlized with the goal of providing backup power fo all areas in need of if
and present it to the Board in the next meeting.

Motion was made by Director Moody, seconded by Director Lamboley to approve the District
Wide Generator Project to be financed over a 25-year Bond issuance, assuming for now the
project cost is 1.44 million dollars. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: H. Wiggins; S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

4. Review and consider Resolution No. 07-01-20 Annual Compliance

Motion was made by Director Moody, seconded by Director Lamboley to approve Resolution
No. 07-01-20 Annual Compliance. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: H. Wiggins; S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

STAFF/COMMITTEE REPORTS: (Informational Only)

1. Water Rate Study

o Projectis on schedule. NBS will finalize preliminary report by early Sepiember
e Regular communication between NBS and District Staff.

2. Homeowners Insurance in Rural Areas-Harry Wiggins

e Insurance carriers are discontinuing coverage to some homeowner's in our service ared
e The two apparent reasons being discussed are:

o Wildfire risk

o PoorISO (Insurance Service Office) rating, for the local fire depariment

o Rating is based on Fire Department capabilities and availability of water supply

The District's water infrastructure met all requirements from Monterey County and Fire
Department in the time of construction

General Manager Rosa informed the Board that Costco is writing policies in our service area
at reasonable rates, compared to the rate mentioned at the last meeting

3. District Operation: changes due to COVID-19 and “Shelter in Place" order

o District office will remain open with strict guidelines.
o District Parks have been closed.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - July 23, 2020 P.

Copies of notice at District office and list of duties for office.
No Vendors or members of the public are allowed into office.
Office is staffed daily by General Manager and one administrative employee.
Payments are being received; no change given.
District has a verbal agreement in place for Mutual Aid with both Castroville CSD and
Aromas WD. District Counsel is working on a written agreement.
Staff is currently working with ACWA-JPIA to draft and indemnity agreement for liability.
President Wiggins and Vice President Coplin conducted a conference call with
General Manager and Operations Manager to plan for “worst case scenario™

e President now has District Office keys and alarm codes and has advised Staff to

have Operations Manuals, keys to facilities and system maps readily available

on the conference room table.
e Contact information for all Board Members, employees and vendors are
available in binder.
e Notices mailed to customers with May bills indicating that their water is safe and
unaffected by COVID-19, copy of nofice included in packet.
o Office remains closed to public; continuing to take payments by phone or drop-off.
e Office will be at full staffing beginning July 6, 2020 with physical distancing requirements
met and health screening protocols in place; masks or face coverings to be womn
always while indoors.

No change in operations currently
4. District Operations Report
Pajaro Grant
e The mixing system has been installed and the Health Inspector has signed off the final
inspection. The completion goal continues to be August 71, 2020.
Springfield Planning Grant
e The closing documents along with the last submittal for reimbursement have been
submitted to the State. The Cultural and Biological reports have been findlized.
Monthly conference call is scheduled on July 29, 2020.
5. Usage Comparison Report 2013/2020

e Water usage is down in most systems except for Sunny Mesa and Springfield Water
Systems compared to this month in 2013.

Closed Session: None

NEXT BOARD MEETING:

The next Board meeting is to be held on Thursday, August 27, 2020 at 5:30 pm.

There being no further business, the regular Board Meeting of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community

Services District was adjourned at 5:59 pm with motion made by Director Moody, seconded by
Director Coplin. Motion Carried.

g



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - July 23, 2020

Respectfully submitted by:

Harry Wiggins, President

Sanford Coplin, Vice President

Judith Vazgquez-Varela, Recorder

B,

12



F. 1

w

FINANCIAL NOTES - July 2020

Account No:

4001-4015

Account Name:

Total Income

Increase /
Decrease

Description

Above normal usage: notably in Blackie, Moss Landing & Normco

Repair & Maint.

~ 5000 Salaries & Wages + Three (3) payroll periods within the month
5050 Employee Health p Timing of pay period schedule led to 2 payments within the
Insurance month

Buildi ;

5140 u:ldl_ng Repelr + Exterior painting of District office

Maintenance

Office Equi t

5170 ffice Equipmen + Renewal of phone system service; annual fee

5180

5220

4110

Casualty Ins/ Liability
Insurance

Water System-

Repair &
Maintenance

Hydrant Sales

Property Program renewal of policies; installment payment

-Installation of new 20 hp pump for Langley
-Transmitter repair and new lithium battery for Normco

Temporary Hydrant Meters- Increase in water sales during
summer season




12:58 PM

August 11, 2020

Accrual Basis

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2020

P. 14

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1001 - SCCB - Operating Account
1002 - SCCB Reserve Account
1003 - SCCB - Sick Leave Account
1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct
1006 - SCCB-GF 633
1007 - SCCB - Debt Service Reserve
1032 - SCCB-COP Acct (aka Const. Acct)
1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct
1050 - Cash in County Treasury - DS
1051 - Cash in County Treasury - GF
1066 - Union Bank Vega 2303
1068 - Union Bank Vega 2301
1069 + Union Bank Vega-2302
1095 - Union Bank Wtr Bond-Res 2204
2201 - Union Bank-2015 Wtr Rfd Bd 2201

Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
1110 - Invoice Accounts Recv
1231 - Grants Receivable-A/R

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
1080 - Petty Cash
1100 - Water Customer Accounts Recv
1101 - Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
1115 - Prepaid Expenses
1153 + Receivable from Montery County
1251 - Assess. Rec. - Lighting
1252 - Assessments Rec. - Street Maint
1253 - Assessments Rec. - Water bond
1253.1 - Assess Rec - Water Bond - Count
1254 + Advanced Pay - Spec. Asses - WB

Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
1084 - CIP-Springfield/Struve
1500 - Land
1510 - Land Improve (Non-office)
1620 - Land Improve (Office)
1521 - AID - Land Impr (Off)
1522 - Land - Parks
1530 - Wells
1540 - Pumping Plant Bldg
1541 - AID - Pumping Plant Bldg
1550 - District Office Building
1551 - A/D - District Office Building
1555 - Office Equipment/Furniture
1556 - AID - Office Equip/Furniture
1557 - Equipment - Lighting
1559 - AID - Lighting and Parks
1560 - Electric Power to Sheds
1561 « AID - Electric Power to Sheds
1570 - Equipment - Pumping Plant
1571 - AID - Equipment - Pumping Plant
1580 - Distribution Mains [P]
1581 - A/D - Distribution Mains
1590 - Meters
1591 - AID - Meters
1600 - Hydrants

Jul 31, 20

159,986.82
202,774.15
14,451.84
212,065.67
236,153.07
59,158.08
84,952.68
81,605.16
65,837.34
100,214.09
148,032.97
53.03
10,529.89
147,869.10
89.55

1,523,773.44

1,808.14
93,690.28

95,498.42

400.00
230,333.53
-8,990.09
507.31
860.00
949.14
6,256.76
300,206.00
116.43
-16,561.65

514,076.43

2,133,348.29

18,967.36
139,676.30
253,942.67
66,721.46
-44,861.40
248,000.00
162,488.25
191,044.92
-191,045.00
134,443.43
-123,428.73
44,041.05
-43,293.90
8,980.18
-8,980.18
2,598.59

-2,599.00

506,239.21
-453,386.87
1,487,948.01

-1,063,798.68 -

92,193.13
-84,656.11
7,422.43

Page 1



12:58 PM

August 11, 2020

Accrual Basis

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2020

P-15

1601

1610+

1611

1620 -
- AID - Utility T&D Plant
1622 -
1630 -
1631 -
1640 -

1621

1641

1650 -

1651

1670 -

1671

1680 -

1681

1804 -
1805 -

+ AID - Hydrants

Automotive Equipment

- AID - Automotive Equipment
Utility Trans/Distr Plant

A/D - Moss Landing

Utility Plant

AID - Utility Plant

Source of Supply Plant

* AID - Source of Supply Plant
Trans & Distr Plant

- AJID - Trans & Distr Plant
Small Tools/Equipment

+ AID - Small Tools/Equipment
ALCO Water Project

- AID - ALCO Water Project
CIP-Springfield

CIP-Vega Imprvtmnt Project

1805.1 - AID - Vega

1806
1807

+ Moss Landing Bridge Project
+ CIP-Langley/VP

1807.1 - A/D - Langley/VP

1808

- CIP-Normco

1808.1 - AID - Normco Tank

1811

- CIP-Vierra Estate

1811.1 - A/ID - Vierra Estates

1812

- CIP-Moss Landing Water System

1812.1 - AID - Moss Landing Water

1814
1815
1816
1817

- CIP-Pajaro

+ CIP-Normco Improv Project
- Land - Pajaro Park

- Improvements - Pajaro Park

1817.1 - AID - Improvements -Pajaro Park

1818

- Buildings - Pajaro Park

1818.1 - AID - Buildings-Pajaro Park

1819

- Equipment - Pajaro Park

1819.1 - A/D - Equipment-Pajaro Park

1820

- Normco Treatment Facility

1820.1 - AID-Normco Treatment Facility

1821
1822
1823

+ CIP-Sunny Mesa
- CIP-Vega
+ CIP-Blackie

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets

1420 -
* Due From SC Grant Acct
+ Due from Maint Account
1220 -

1141
1151

1800

19561

Due From Gen Fund

Spl Asmnt Reve-Long Term

* Due From Other Funds
1950 -
+ Deferred Amt of Ref-Vega Bds15

Deferred amount on refunding

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 - Accounts Payable
2500 - Due to Other Funds

Total Accounts Payable

Jul 31, 20

-4,556.72
232,300.12
-195,223.31
115,702.65
-90,071.77
-157,020.31
107,992.45
-107,992.00
54,616.59
-15,624.73
81,133.08
-59,380.30
10,817.67
-8,096.51
155,809.38
-93,485.45
328,851.31
4,604,699.33
-1,962,802.90
251,233.09
240,496.74
-66,136.74
296,974.74
-107,839.73
175,238.16
-38,242.72
297,669.12
-65,436.55
1,581,885.77
3,225.00
781,632.00
4,717,110.00
-1,092,169.63
796,400.00
-150,374.26
43,381.00
-23,136.89
111,943.00
-68,865.85
48,044.61
23,643.81
10,230.04

12,113,130.41

0.66

100.00
157.19
3,873,869.72
159,690.92
73,213.60
95,017.09

4,202,039.18

18,448,517.88

64,357.91
1569,693.06

224,050.97

Page 2



12:58 PM

August 11, 2020

Accrual Basis

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2020

P. 16

Other Current Liabilities
2005 - Accrued Liabilities
2050 « Accrued Payroll
2100 - Payroll Tax Liabilities
2121 - Customer Security Deposits
2122 - Future Water Conn. Deposits
2123 - Hydrant Meter Deposits
2225 + Accrued Vacation Liability
2230 - Accrued Sick Leave Liability
2263 - 457b EE Plan Payable
2264 - Employee Insurance Payable -
2265 - EE Aflac Insurance Payable
2320 - Due to 64 Original Sewer Accts
2324 - Payable to Customers
2325 - Payable to P.V.W.NLA.

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2256 - Vehicle Loan Payable
2257 + Reorganization Loan
2267 - Pajaro Tank Loan-0190
2333 - COP Bonds Payable
2339 - Vega Project Bonds Payable
2350 - Bonds Payable - Water Bond
2360 - Bonds Payable-2015 COP Wtr Rf
2361 - Bonds Payable-2015 Vga Wir Rf
2400 - Unamortized Discount on 2015
2401 - Unamorized Discount-2015 Vega

Total Long Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
3000 - Fund Balance
3001 - Restricted-Street Maintenance
3040 - Contributed Capital
3045 - Restricted for Debt Service
3050 - Retained Earnings
3999 - Suspense
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Jul 31, 20

67,274.00
14,083.65
1,500.00
16,552.15
36,600.00
25,050.00
37,125.59
49,358.51
4,203.18
-2,896.62
942,63
29,169.90
2,347.79
-29,534.62

251,776.16

475,827.13

27,803.08
245,000.00
892,991.53

-255,000.00
-72,100.00
224,000.00

2,200,000.00
3,710,083.67
-34,205.01
-13,986.72

6,024,586.55

7,400,413.68

219,540.85
87,655.80
248,000.00
4,575,060.23
5,921,670.06
13,037.78
-16,860.52

11,048,104.20

18,448,517.88

Page 3



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P=12

12:59 PM
August 11, 2020 Pl’OfIt & LOSS
Accrual Basis July 2020
Jul 20
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4001 - Route 1 - Pajaro 21,204.27
4002 - Route 2 - Pajaro 22,723.58
4003 - Route 3 - Commercial 24,845.49
4004 - Route 4 - Trailer Park 958.25
4005 - Route 5 - San Juan Rd Apts 930.99
4006 - Route 6 - Sunny Mesa 12,912.40
4007 - Route 7 - CSA 73 14,469.92
4008 - Route 8 - Vega 15,146.19
4010 - Route 10 -Springfield 850.00
4011 - Route 11 - Moss Landing 25,420.58
4012 - Route 12 - Blackie Road 3,649.62
4013 - Route 13 - Normco 33,227.26
4014 - Route 14 - Vierra 5,447.90
4015 - Route 15 - Langley/VP 3,211.19
Total Income 184,997.64
Gross Profit 184,997.64
Expense
INDIRECT
5000 - Salaries and Wages 91,711.29
5030 - Payroll Tax Expense 804.45
5050 - Employee Health Insurance 31,366.78
5070 - Employee Retirement 12,625.85
5130 - Utilities - Office 288.81
5140 - Building Repair & Maint 7,015.73
5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint 1,244.07
5160 - Office Equip Rental 574.75
5165 - Computer Software 477.42
5170 - Office Equipment Repair & Maint 1,147.13
5180 - Casualty Ins/Liability Ins 7,241.96
5200 - Billing Supplies 2,511.66
5240 - Office Supplies 432.96
5245 - Postage 1,000.00
5250 - Legal Expenses 2,644.80
5255 - Interest Expense 99.52
5260 - Accounting & Bookkeeping 1,100.00
5266 - Engineering Svcs-Dist Wide 6,100.00
5270 - Automotive - Repair & Maint 102.20
5320 - Membership Fees and Dues 399.41
5330 - Telephone 2,295.97
5340 - Burglar Alarm Monitoring 30.00
5370 - Fuel - Trucks 1,698.22
5391 - Credit Card Transaction Fees 556.82
6XXX - Indirect Allocation 0.01
Total INDIRECT 173,469.81
5190 - Soil and Water Tests 955.00
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint 21,676.63
5225 - Street Maintenance 192.19
5230 - Park - Repair & Maint 44.63
5231 + Pajaro Park Expense 1,091.61
5310 - Utilities - Well Site 5,927.94
5315 - Utilities - Street Lighting 2,045.78
Total Expense 205,303.59
Net Ordinary Income -20,305.95
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
4100 - Late Payment Penalties 409.22
4110 - Hydrant Sales 1,304.27
4285 - P.V.W.M.A. Collection Fee 2,572.85

Page 1



P18

12:59 PM Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
August 11, 2020 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2020
Jul 20
4307 - Returned Check Charges 25.00
4345 - Customer Order Reimbursements 187.50
4350 - Interest Revenue 25.84
Total Other Income 4,524.68
Other Expense
5435 - Improvement Project-Pajaro 879.25
6260 - Lighting Expenses 200.00
Total Other Expense 1,079.25
Net Other Income 3,445.43
Net Income -16,860.52

Page 2



Wlwmmm

«00°000'2 %00 19'g9L 000 %00 29991 000 SUOReIYIUSD PUB SBSUIDIT - 9ZES
O-0o000'ce %0°'ve £9'999°L Ly'66€ %0 29'989'} Lb'66E sanq pue saa4 diysiaquap - 0ZES
00'00&'L %00 00'sgL 000 %00 oosel 000 welbold UORBAIISUO JBIBM - SOSS
00°005'} %00 00'seL 000 %00 00621 000 suonduosgng g s}oog - 00ES
00008 %00 L9V 000 %00 L9y 000 S9suadx3 |aAeIL - 06ZS
00°005 %00 PAN A4 000 %0°0 L9°Ly 000 sieulwag ‘sbuieayy ‘seoualauod - 08ZS
0070000} %ETL ye'ees 0z'zol %e'Ch re'ees 0zzol juiepy 2 Jieday - aagowoNy - 0225
00°000'L¥ %G"8LL Lo'sLp'e 00°001'9 %G'8LL L9°9Lt'e 00°'001'9 apIM Is1a-soAg Buneaulbug - 99z
00°000'2€ %L'GE PE'E80'E 00'00L'1 %L'SE ye'eso's 00°00L'L Buidaayyoog B Bupuncooy - 09zs
00°00¥'2 %0°0 00°002 000 %00 00°002 000 swa}| pasueuld-dxg ysalajy] - 9676
00°000'¢}h %C6 $E'e80°L 25'66 %C'6 ¥E'E80°L €566 asuadxz 1SaIaU] - 6626
00°000'42 %SG L 00°052'T 08'P¥9'zT %G LLL 00°052'2 08'¥+9'e sasuadx3g [eba - 052§
00'00s'e %e L¥l e'80L 00°000'L % Lyl ¥e°80L 00°000'L abeysod - spzs
00°005' %V 8yl L8°162 96°2EY %8kl 197162 96°CEY sayddng 32140 - 0¥25
0o0'00L'e %9'vL8 +E'80€E 99'LLs'Z %9'tLe ¥e'80¢E 99°LLS'E sanddng Buing - 0025
00°000'LE %¢e'08Z $£'€85'e 96°'L¥T'L %E082 $Ee88'e 96L¥T L su| fiqerysuj fenses - 0815
007000} %00 yeee 00°0 %00 peee 000 ‘ Juiely g Jleday - S|001 J[eWS - §LLS
00°'009' %¥'Z8e 0o'ooe eLivL'L %¥'Z8e 00°00€ eLirL'L juiepy g Jreday juawdinb3 asy0 - 0LLS
00°000'0L %ELS YE'eEs (4 VAY %E LS PEEER [A ¥ alemyog Jandwoy - 9L
00°000'0L %0'68 e'ees SLYvLS %069 ye'eee SL¥LS [eJuay dinb3 22110 - 091
00°00L'€ %00 PE'80€ 000 %00 #e'80€ 000 aomuag abeques - 0515
00°000'9L %EE6 ve'eee'l L0ve'L %E'EB yeeee'l 20%¥2'L Jurepy g Jreday apIA JOLISIA - SLS
00°000°6L %E’ 1SS ooose'l €.°610°2 %E°195 ooose'L e4'610°, jurepy g sreday Buipiing - 0pLs
00°000't %998 FEEEE L8'age %9'98 PE'EEE 18°882 92410 - SIjIAN - 0ELS
00°008'L %0°0 00'sZ}L 000 %00 00'sZL o[ o)o} saxe] fpadold - 0ZLS
00°00¢'2 %070 ve'802 000 %00 ¥e£'802 000 asuadxz safojdw3 18430 - 0605
00°00€'vLL %92EL 00'525'6 68'6Z9'ZL %9CEL 00'525'6 $8'529'21 Juswainey dafoidw - 0205
00°000's8L %2002 19'998's1 8.°99¢'Le %2002 19'998'51 8L°99¢c'LE aoueansuy| yyeaH safojdws - 0505
00°000'02 %0°0 19'998'L ooo %00 £9'998'L 00°0 2oueinsu] dwoy SJaNIOM - 0F0S
00°000'8L %€ 09 peeee'l S¥'v08 %€°09 ve'eee'l Sv'¥08 asuadx3 xe] |joifed - 0£0S
00°000'v2 %070 00°000'2 00°0 %00 00°000'2 000 JoqeT Joenuod - 0L0S
00°000'9 %0°0 00°00S o000 %00 00°00S 00’0 $994 SAleSIUIWPY - 5005
00°000'28L %yl 00'005'€9 6cLLL'LE %V vyl 00°005'€9 6Z'LLLLE - sabepn pue sauees - 0005
LOIHIANI
asuadxz
00°008'250'2 %2801 $0°0S0'LLL $9'.L66'78L %280} $0°050'LLL $9'.66'v81L JJold SS045)
00°009'250'2 %Z'80L $0°050'LLL ¥9'L66'v8L %2801 #0°060'LLL $9°L66'vRL awoou| [ejo]
00°008'2E %l LLL 19'\9L'T glLle'e %V LLL 19'WwL'E gl'LLz'e dnifelbuen - gL s3noy - LoV
00°009'2s %EeVeL PE'E8E'Y 068°'L¥P'S %EPEL re'E8e'y 08'L¥¥'s BLIIIA - ¥} 2INOY - VL0V
00'000'StE %9GLL 00°052'82 oz LTT'ee %9'GL1 00°05.'82 gz lez'ee OJWLICN - £} @Jn0y - EL0Y
00°00L'LE %< 8EL L9'LP9'E Z9'6b9'e % 8EL LOLp9'E 29'699'e PeOY anjoe|g - T} 2IN0Y - ZL0Y
00°000'L42 %9CLL ¥£'£85'22 85'02¥'s2 %9211 . peess'ze 86'02¥'se BulpueT ssoj - L} 3oy - LLOY
00°005'0L %1°L6 00648 00°058 %116 0068 00’058 praybuuds- gL 23n0y - 0LOY
00°00e'95 1t %Ee9Ll 00's20'el sL'ovL'SL %eaLl 00°sz0'e) 6LorL'sl eba - g aynoy - gooy
00°000'85) %6601 1998L'el Z6'69%'FL %6601 £L9'939L'EL 26'69F'vL €4VSD - L3N0y - L00¥
00°00L'EVL %8201 00°G/6'LL ov'ZLe'ZL %8201 00°66'}L ov'ZLe'ZL esaly Auung - g 83N0Y - S00%
00°00%'€lL %¥'E8 L9°9LL'L 66°0E6 %¥e8 L9°8LL'L 66'0£6 sydy py uenr ues - g 3IN0Y - S00Y
00°00S'el %2'S8 ooszL'L G2'856 %eC’G8 00'szZl'L G2'8S6 Nled Jojiel] - ¥ 9IN0yY - ¥00%
00'000'242 %9201 YE'EB0'ET 6¥'SY8've %9720} PE'E80'EZ 8Y°GPR'YE [BIDJAWLWIOY - € 3INOY - €00
00°000'842 %886 00°000'€Z 85'€T.L'2T %886 00°000'c2 85°€ZL'ZT osefed - Z 8Inoy - Z00¥
00°000'LL2 %6'E6 PE'E8S'ZE levoz'ie %6°E6 pe'ees'ze LTyoz'Le odefed - | 9ynoy - L00¥
awoou|
asuadxgjawosu| Leuipio
1e6png [enuuy 196png J0 % 396png QLA oz Inp 3e6png jo % jabpng oz Inp
0zoz AInp siseq |eniooy
]
9ourwWLIOLIa }Jobpng ss07 R JiJold 0202 ‘41 3snbny

J9L13S1Q S991AI9S AJlunwiwo) esay Auungjoleled I L0:L



mmmn_

(=8
00°00S'0% %0°0 00°6.8'e 000 %0°0 006.€'e 00'0 SWAWSSISSY puog J3BM - ¥6.S
00°00% %00 YE'EE 000 %070 Fe'Ee 000 juawasInquiay |asunos [eba - ogcy
00°00L %0°0 ¥e'8s 000 %00 YE'8S 000 juawasinquiay Buidaayyoogapny - Sset
00°00L's %¥'S 00°54¥ ¥8°5¢ %¥'S 00°S.Lv 8’5 ANUIAIY }S3IAU] - OSEY
00008 %0°0 L9'LY 000 %00 L9y 000 394 PeAUIBAD %SZ 10143SI] - 9YEY
05°281 08'281 SJUSLIASINGISY JBPIQ JIWOISND - SHSh
00'000'2) %0°0 00°000'L 0070 %00 00000} 000 sjuswasInquiIay ulwpy Bunyb - Lpey
00°000'82 %00 pe'eee'z 000 %00 ye'eee'z 000 sjuswasinquiay Ann - ovey
0052 0062 sableys oayo pauinjay - oSk
00'00S'L %00 00segl 000 %070 oo'sel 0070 SNUIAIY SNO3UB|IISIN - SOEY
00°00S %0°0 19y 000 %00 18y 000 399V O/M SNOIA3IG JO UO1303][00 - 00CY
00°000'22 %EFLL 000522 68'2.S'T WEFLL 00°052'2 S8TIS'T 934 UOROI[|0D VIN'MA'D - §8ZY
00°000'62 %00 $£'€80°T 000 %00 $£'¢80°C 00°0 aIBYS UONII|[0D XBL BleN-0.d - 08Zy
00°000'8.2 %00 19°991'e2 000 %0°0 lg99l'e2 000 sjuawssassy puog ebap - 0LZY
00'008'c9 %00 lg'gle’s 000 %00 19'8lE'S 000 quuisy-aoueUajUIRl 19348 - 002
00°00% %00 tE'EE 000 %0°0 PEEE 000 $994 JAYI0 - SPIY
00°085 %00 P8°SY 000 %00 v8'st 000 s934 uonesnddy - LyLy
00°00€'¥ %0°0 e'8se 000 %0°0 ¥E'85¢e 000 S994 UOIOBUUOYD - O LY
00°005'2 %00 00529 000 %0°0 o00'see 000 saad bunsal - sL1¥
00°000's %0°ELE L9'8LY LZ908' %0°ele FACR154 L2p0e'L S3leg JUeIpAH - OLLY
00008 %00 L9°LY ooo %00 19°LYy o000 syuaunsnipy Burg - 1oLy
00°000's %286 199l 22'60% %Z'86 L99L¥ 22'60% sanjeuad juawAed 33T - 00LY
awoouj By
asuadx3z/awodul Jayo
000§ 6¥L- %t'e9l Le'eeh'el- 66'50€£'02- %tv'eal Le'eer'el- §6'G0E'02- awcou| AeuIpIQ 19N
00°082'L02'2 %61 L1 Se'6ip'e8l 65°€0€°502 %6°LLL GE'BLY'ERL 68°€0£'502 asuadxg |ejol
00°000'ev L %00 19916'LL 000 %00 [9'9L6'LL oo'o 1S312)U-a2IAI3S J2q eBan - 6259
00°009'0L %0'0 ye'ess 000 %0'0 ve'cag 000 dxg 3se.103u] puog 191N Oteled - EEHS
00'00s'e %00 19'162 000 %00 19'L6Z 000 asuadx3z puog 409 - 82¥S
00°005'} %00 oo'selL 000 %0°0 po'sel 00’0 Jojelsulg - |and - 09€S
00°000's2 %00 $E'€80'C 000 %00 E'€80'C 00’0 SHuIad - 52ES
00'000'82 %l L8 yeeee'z 8.'5¥0' %L'L8 PE'eee'e 8L°6%0'T Bunybi 3eans - sanIlN - SLES
00°000'0LL %8’ lo'9aL'yL ¥6'/26'S %81y 19'98L'pL y6'L26's 9YS [I3M - SN - 0LES
00°000'2 %00 19°98L 000 %00 £9'98L 000 sasuadx3g Bunaaulbug - 5925
L9'L60°L 19'160'L asuadxz yled oseled - L£ZS
00°000'L %9'ES e'es £9'vy %9'ES VE'E8 E9'FY jutey g Jieday - yed - 0£ZS
00°059'2¢ %14 y8'02L'2 61261 %L $8°02L' 61261 dUBUIUIBI J23.}S - §TTS
00°000'522 %G 00°054'8l £9'9.5'12 %S 00°08.'8) £9'9/5'1e jure g Jeday - wayshs J918M - 0225
00°000'2¢ %8'GE 19989'2 00°556 %8'GE 19989'2 00°656 $]S9 J9JepA pUe [10S - 06LS
00°005'225'L %E"9EL 08'L6Z' L2 L8'697'eLL %ge'9el 08'162'22) L8°68t'e /L LOFAIAN] [B30L
00°000'84 %00 00°005'9 000 %0°0 00°005'9 000 Jsalajy[ - AIAIBS 1430 JOD - LL59
00’008 %0°0 00°0§ o000 %0°0 00°0S 000 sasuadxz Buissasold JjoJAed - 0959
100 00 UoRed0[y J22JIPY] - XXXS
oo'oog %00 199l 00’0 %00 L9'9l 000 asuadxa snoaue|[99SI - 00FS
00°000'9 Y%t LLL 00°00¢ c8'96s % LLL 00°00S 287985 $394 uonJdesuel] pJed Jpald - LeES
00'002 %00 £9'9L 000 %0°0 2991 000 sabieyy yueq - 06E5
00°000'v2 %6°¥8 00°000'Z 2z'869'L %6'¥8 00°000'2 22'869'L SHONJL - [and - 0LES
00008 %0°S¥ 19°99 00'0e %05y 1999 00'0e Buuoyuop waepy tebing - pyes
00°000°L1 %129l L9°8LY'L 16'GB2'Z %L2al L9°8LY'L /8'G62'2 auoydalal - 0£Es
196png [enuuy 19Bpng jo % 19Bpng aLA oz I 196png o % 3a6png oz Inr
o0zoz Ainp siseq |enJaoy

aouewlouad }9bpng sso1 B joid 0202 ‘11 39nBny

Jo113S13 S92IAIaS AJlunwwo) esay Auungyoleled Wd 1031



—

&poed
o
00°002°25¢8 %998~ 9Z'808'6Z 2509891~ %9795~ 9Z'808'62 2509891 awoau] 39N
00'058'90S %28 Vi-WlrArad cr'ery'e %T8 167282'2y ev'shy'e awosu] Jayo 18N
§2'6.0'L §2'6.0'1 asuadxg JayQ 3oL
00°002 00°002 sasuadxg Bunybi - p9z9
62'6.8 §2'6.8 ouefeq-jaslold uswanolduw - geps
asuadx3 Jay3o
00°058'905 %2°0L PAWXrArAd 89vZS't %470l 15°/€2'2y 29'ves'y 3LWosU] JaY30 2301
326png |enuuy 196png Jo % 19bpng aLa oz Inp 1e6png jo % 1e6png 0z Inf
0zoz Ainp siseq [en1oay

aoueWIOLI®d }9bpng sso R 1joid
JoLI)sIg S9dIAIeg AJlunwwion esajy Auungjoteled

0202 ‘14 3snbny
nNd 101



¥ jo | abed

ol
- |
I , %LE'E6 1268 veeee'l 20v¥2'L julely g Jieday SPIM JPLISIA - SHLS
- %OTIeS £4°69L'G 00°0s2'} €LGL0'L jurey g Jieday Bulpling - ovLs
. %v9'e8 £5 - peeee 18'882 80110 - SAIBN - 0ELS
%00 00°52L- 00°52Z1 0070 saxe] Apadoid - 0ZLS
%0°0 vE 802~ $£°802 000 asuadx3 safojdwz JaW0 - 060S
%9521 G00l's 00°525'6 §8°529'Z) juswainay sefodws - 0208
%12'002 11700461 £9'989'S1 8.89¢'LE aaueInsu| yyeay sakojdws - 0505
%00 19999'L- £9'899'L 000 aoueinsu| dwoy S,JOIOM - 0F0S
| %EE09 68'825- yereee’t S'P08 asuadx3 xe] |joihed - 0205
%00 00°000'2- 00°000'2 000 JogeT JoenuoD - 0105
“ %0°0 00°008- 00°00& 000 $3994 SAJBLSIUIWPY - S00S
_ %EY PiL 62L1Z'8e 00'005'€9 62 11L'L6 sabep pue saleesS - 000§
LozdIant
asuadxgy
%GL 801 09" L¥6'EL ¥0°060'LLL $9°/66'81 Jjoud SSOID
%5801 09°L¥6'El #0°050'LLL ¥9°L66'781 awoouy| |ejol
%ELLLL Z5'697 19L¥L'E 8lLlz'e dAife|BueT - 51 3oy - sLOY
%6272} 95'490'L yEE8EYy 06°L¥¥'G BLIBIA - ¥} 3INOY - $LOY
%/G°GLL 9T LLiv'Y 00'05.°82 gzlez'ee OJWJON - £} 3IN0Y - £L0Y
%91°8E 66°L00'L 19992 29'679'e peoy anjoe|g - Z| 2oy - ZLoY
%952 v Le8'C PE'e8s'2e 85'0Zv'Se BuipueT ssop - L} 3oy - LLOY
%L L6 00'se- 00'5£8 00°058 pleybunds- gl 3Inoy - 0LOY
%62'9kLL 6L°12L'Z 00°520'¢l 6LorL'sl eBap - g 8In0Y - 800V
%6'601L GZ'E0g'L 19991'¢lL 26°697'7L €L VSO - L3I0y - L00Y
%Eg"L01 ov'LE6 00°626'L1L 0r'Z16'2) esay Auuns - g SN0y - 900%
%LEER B9'GE |- L9°9LL'L 66°0€6 s)dy py uenr ues - g N0y - S00%
%8158 G991~ 00°62L'L 52'856 Mled Jaliel] - ¢ N0y - F00Y
%E9° 201 G1'29L'L $£°€80'cZ 8Y°Ghe've [el212WWog - ¢ AN0Y - £O0¥
%286 zrose- 00°000'€Z 85'€2L'2 outefed - z ynoy - Zooy
%68°€6 L0'6.LE" L $£'€85'2C LZ¥02'12 ouefed - | anoy - LOOY
awIoouj
ww:wn_unw__m:.._ooc_ ?_mr_:.ﬁo
3ebpng j0 % 196png 1970 $ 19bpng oz inp
020z AIne

siseg [eniooy

[en}oy "SA }Jobpng ssoT R Jjoid
0202 ‘L1 3snbny
JoLSIq S92I1A19S AJlunwwos esapy Auungjoieled INd S&:b



¥ 10 Z abeq
™
(o]

o

%8061l £9'02Z8'Z 00°054'8k £9'925'1Z
%18'GE L9711 ) £9'999°C 00°556
%82 9L L 00°8.L'9¥ 08°'162°L2Z) 08'69v'cLL
%0'0 00°006'9- 00°005'9 000
%00 00°05- 0005 000
%0°0 199} 199l 000
%9E L1 Z8'95 00°00G 78'95%
%00 299}~ 199 000
%1678 84°10€- 00°000'2 zZ'969'L
%0°SY 19'ge- £9'99 00°0¢
%.L0°Z9) 0£'6.48 L9'9Lp') L6'G6Z'Z
%00 19°691- 19'99L 000
%L6'EZ AT £9'999'L L¥'66E
%00 00°52L- 00°6ZL 000
%00 00521 00°6Z) 000
%00 191y 19l 000
%00 L9 19'ly 000
%922} LANETE $EEER 02201
%S 8Ll ££'¢89'2 lg9Lp'e 00°00L‘g
%89°GE ¥£'€86'L- vE'e80'e 00°00L°}
%0°0 00°00Z- 00002 000
%616 z8'c86- ¥£'€80°} z5'66
%SG LLL 08'v6E 00'052'2 08'¥¥9'Z
%81 Ll 99162 ¥£'80L 00°000'}
%t eyl 62 L¥l 19'162 96'zEr
%85 ¥18 ZE'€02'T ¥£'80¢ 891162
%EE 082 z9'959'y ¥£'€86'2 96°LYZ L
%0°0 ye'eg- vees 000
%9E'Z8E cL'.v8 00008 SLipL'L
%82 LS Z6°6G¢- yeees v LLy
%.6'89 65°852- yEees SLYLS
%00 $£°80¢- 7£'80¢ 000
19Bpng jo % jebpng J8A0 ¢ jebpng oz Inp
0zoz Ainp

|enjoy “SA 19bpng ssoT R Hjodd
Jo1SIg S991A19S Alunwwon esapy Auungjoleled

juiel g Jreday - wayshs J218M - 0225
S)saL ISjBM PUE [IOS - 06LS
1D3HIANI IBjoL

Isalau| - @9IAI8S 1920 dOD - LLS9
sasuadx3z Buissasodd [|odhed - 0959

asuadx3 snoauej|aosIy - 00¥S

S99 UCIoBSURI] pIe) JPal) - L6ES
sabieyg yueg - 06¢S

SHONIL - |9Nd - 0LES

Buuojuoy wiely Je|bing - 0pes
auoyde[a] - 0£€S

SUOedLIa) PUR S3SUIIT - 9ZES
senQ pue saa4 diyslaquialy - 0ZES
welbold UoeAIasuos JAJeA - SOES
suopnduosqng g s)0ogd - 00€S
sasuadxg [aAel] - 06ZS

sleuiwas ‘sbunssyy ‘saoualajuoy - 08ZS
jutepy @ Jeday - sagowolny . 0225
9PIA 3510-S2AS Buleaulbus - 99zs
Buidsayyoog ® Bununoasy - g9zs
Swaj| pesueuld-dxg 1Sa193U| - 9525
asuadxg }salalu] - 6525

sesuadx3z [eba - 0525

abejsod - 28

saiddng 2110 - 0v25

saljddng Buliig - 0025

su| Ayiqeryysul fyjenses - 08ls
‘Juiepy g Jieday - S|0OL [BWS - G/1§
jurepy g Jieday juswdinbg 29140 - 0LLS
aiemyog Jandwon - G9LS

[ejusy dinb3 82130 - 0915

2a1Meg abeques) - 0SS

siseg |ENJ22Y
020z ‘1L 3snbny
INd €%}



¥ 10 ¢ abegq
Ay
[aN |

o

%00 vergs- PE'8S 000
%by'S oL 6P 00°GLY ¥8'5e
%0°0 9Ly 181y 000
%00 00°000' L~ 00°000'L 000
%0°0 yeeee'e- yeeee's 000
%0°0 o0szl- 00'sel 000
%00 191 L9y 000
%GE VLI §8'zee 00°05z'2 GR'ZLS'T
%00 $£°€80°2- #£°€80'2 000
%00 L9991 'ce- £9'98l'ee 000
%00 Lo9le's- 991E's 000
%00 veee- FE'EE 000
%00 ¥8°Gh- v8°GY 000
%00 ¥E'8GE" ¥E'85¢ 000
%00 00'g2g- 00'529 000
%Z0'ELE 09°.88 L8°9L¥ LZHOE"L
%0°0 191 191y 00'0
%1286 G L L9°9LY Z2'60%
%65 PG 20°68L'9- RN TA AR EEvIZ'Bl-
%E LLL 2928402 GE'BLY'ESL 167112702
%00 L9816 LI L9°916'LL 000
%00 #£'€88- 7£°£88 000
%0°0 19'162- 19162 00°0
%0°0 00°gZ1- 00°SZL 00°0
%00 ¥£'€80'2- $E'€80'2 000
%89°/8 95°.82- EEELT 8L°G¥0'C
%P8 Ly £Lgez's- L9'99L'YL ¥6'L26'G
%00 29°991- 29991 000
%GS'€S LL'gE" ] €9ty
%90°L §9'825'Z- ¥802L'2 61261
396png 0 % }ebpng JanQ § 1eBpng oz inr

[enjoy "SA }Jabpng sso07 R Jjoid
JoLgsIg S99IAI9S AJlunwwon essy Auungjoieled

0zoz Ainp

juswesinguiey Buideayyoogmpny - S5
ANUaAY Jsataly] - 0S5EY

994 PEaYIaAQ %ST I0HISIA - 9vER
sjuaWasINquIay ulwpy Bunyb - vy
sjuswsInquiIay AN - 0vsr

SNUBARY Snoauej|adsIy - S0EY

199y O/M SNolA21d Jo uoiaal[o) - 00EY
924 Uono3|[0D V'IN'M'A'd - §8ZF

aleyg UORII[|0D XL BjeN-0ld - 082
sjuswssassy puog ebap - 0LZy
quiiey-aoueuajuIRl 3192418 - 00ZF

$334 JaUl0 - 9Ly

s@34 uoneaddy - L¥Ly

S894 UOIO3UUOY - OF LY

sasg Bupsal - SLLvy

sa[eg JueIpAH - OLLY

syusugsnipy Bulg - 101y

ssijjeuad juawied 3387 - 00LY

awoouj 12yl

asuadx3zfewosu] B30

awoou| f1euIpiQ 19N

asuadxd |ejol
Jsalajul-a21Alag Jqaq eBaA - G159
dx3 1sa19ju] puog J3)epn OJeled - £S16
ssuadxg puog dO9 - 8Z¥S
lojelauan) - |and - 0955
spwlad - 6ZES
Bunybi 1eans - saplnN - SLES
S II°9M - S9N - 0LES
sasuadxg Buusauibug - g9zZ5
jure|y @ Jleday - jied - 0828
aoueuUIBY] }921S - §ZZS

siseg [eniooy
0Z0Z ‘LI 3snbny

Nd ge-l



¥ 10  abed
K9
o~

o

(sTvev'se) $
aJuasayidg

(ST"ZO6VT) $

L6°09£T9E $
ysed Ajnr

L6'TTTY0T S

ZT'S8T'88E S
ysed aunr

T8'60€E68T S

2ouaJapq asuadxj |ejlo] awoou| |30
%66 6%~ Ly 0LL'YP- 9Z°808°62 SL'Z06'tL-
%le0l 6€'Ge6'LE- VAW LA 8L'Zle'Y
000
%le 0L 6£'6Z6'L¢- 16°22'2y gL'zle'y
%00 00°6Le'e- oo'gie'e 000
%00 peree- peee 000 .
jabpng 10 9, 196png 19AQ § 18bpng oz Inp
0zoz Ainp

|enjoy "sA jobpng ssoT R Jjo.dd
jJouLasIq seviAles AHlunwwos esapy Auung/oleled

awoou] 18N
awoou] Jaylp 19N

asuadx3 JayjQ [BloL
asuadx3 18430
awoou] JayjQ [e3oL

SJUBWISSASSY puog J9BM - P66
JuawasInquIay [asunon [ebaT - gosy

siseq [enooy

0202 ‘L1 3snbny
nd ggl



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 26

10:56 AM
August 21, 2020 Check Detail - Operating Account
August 1 - 21, 2020
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Check ACH 08/07/2020 MUFG Union Bank, N. A. 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -2,155.00

2203 - Union Bank Rev Ref Bds-2200 -2,155.00 2,155.00
TOTAL -2,165.00 2,155.00
Check AP 08/03/2020 Total Merchant Services 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -762.34

5391 - Credit Card Transaction Fees -762.34 762.34
TOTAL -762.34 762.34
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 A. L. Lease Company, Inc.-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -774.18
Bill 126199  07/29/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -667.65 667.65
Bill 126332  07/29/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.01 32.01
Bill 126461 07/31/2020  Tony Luis 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -55.29 55.29
Bill 126462  07/31/2020 Tony Luis 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -19.23 19.23
TOTAL -774.18 774.18
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Ace Hardware Watsonville-Online 1001 + SCCB - Operating Account -110.74
Bill 197907  07/20/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -11.98 11.98
Bill 198012  07/23/2020 5230 - Park - Repair & Maint -13.10 13.10
Bill 198062  07/24/2020 5230 - Park - Repair & Maint -11.563 11.53
Bill 198114  07/27/2020 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -10.46 10.46
Bill 198090  07/27/2020 5230 - Park - Repair & Maint -20.00 20.00
Bill 198222  07/30/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -25.11 25.11
Bill 198253  07/31/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -18.56 18.56
TOTAL -110.74 110.74
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020  AT&T 1782-Online 1001 + SCCB - Operating Account -33.03
Bill Jul7-...  07/07/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -33.03 33.03
TOTAL -33.03 33.03
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020  AT&T 2043-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -404.87
Bill Jul 2... 07/26/2020 5330 - Telephone -404.87 404.87
TOTAL -404.87 404.87
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020  AT&T 2486-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -154.09
Bill July 2...  07/26/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -154.09 154.09
TOTAL -154.09 154,09
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 AT&T 2627-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -33.03
Bill 7/712...  07/07/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -33.03 33.03
TOTAL -33.03 33.03
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020  AT&T 5283-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -153.22
Bill 7A1L..  07/11/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -163.22 1563.22
TOTAL -1563.22 163.22
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 AT&T 6542-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -64.67
Bill T2.. 07/07/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -64.67 64.67
TOTAL -64.67 64.67
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Bianchi Kasavan & Pope-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,100.00

Page 1



10:56 AM
August 21, 2020

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
Check Detail - Operating Account
August 1 - 21, 2020

P. 27

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Bill 0011..  07/01/2020 5260 - Accounting & Bookkeeping -1,100.00 1,100.00
TOTAL -1,100.00 1,100.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Corbin Willits Systems-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -237.42
Bill 000C... 07/15/2020 5165 - Computer Software -237.42 237.42
TOTAL -237.42 237.42
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Data Flow Business Systems-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -243.89
Bill 292596  07/24/2020 5170 - Office Equipment Repair & Ma... -243.89 243.89
TOTAL -243.89 243.89
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Green Rubber Kennedy Ag-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -35.20
Bill W-55...  07/20/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -4.90 4.90
Bill W-565,..  07/27/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.30 30.30
TOTAL -35.20 35.20
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 MBAS-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -120.60
Bill 2007...  07/24/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -45.00 45,00
Bill 2006...  08/01/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -75.60 75.60
TOTAL -120.60 120.60
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Mid Valley Supply-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -722,62
Bill 12475...  07/22/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -120.44 120.44

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint ~30.11 30.11

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.10 30.10
Bill 12476...  07/29/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -120.44 120.44

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30,11

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11
Bill 12478...  08/05/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -80.33 90.33

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11

5220 + Water System - Repair & Maint -60,22 60.22

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.10 30.10
TOTAL -722.62 722.62
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Mission Uniform Service-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -40.00
Bill 5128...  07/20/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -40.00 40.00
TOTAL -40.00 40.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Monterey One Water- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -69.98
Bill 7M2...  07/31/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -44.25 44,25
Bill Augu...  07/31/2020 5130 - Utilities -~ Office -25.73 25.73
TOTAL -69.98 69.98
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 PG&E 1438-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,788.41
Bill 6/25/...  07/24/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -1,788.41 1,788.41
TOTAL -1,788.41 1,788.41
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 PG&E 1826-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -69.94
Bill 6M8/...  07/17/2020 5310 - Ulilities - Well Site -69.94 69.94

Page 2



P. 28

10:56 AM Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
August 21, 2020 Check Detail - Operating Account
August 1 - 21, 2020
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

TOTAL -69.24 69.94
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 PG&E 6022-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -13.92
Bill 06/20... 07/20/2020 5315 - Utilities - Street Lighting -13.92 13.92
TOTAL -13.92 13.92
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Santa Cruz Answering Service-Onl... 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -130.36
Bill 1009 ... 07/22/2020 5330 - Telephone -130.36 130.36
TOTAL -130.36 130.36
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Soil Control Lab-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -775.00
Bill 0070... 07/09/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 0070... 07/09/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 0070...  07/09/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 0070...  07/09/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 0070...  07/08/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 0070..  07/09/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 0070...  07/09/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25,00
Bill 0070...  07/09/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 0070... 07/09/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tesis -75.00 75.00
Bill 0070...  07/09/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 0070...  07/10/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -75.00 75.00
Bill 0070...  07/10/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 0070...  07/15/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -75.00 75.00
Bill 0070..  07/16/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 0070..  07/15/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 0070...  07/17/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 0070... 07/17/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25,00
Bill 0070...  07/22/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
TOTAL -775.00 775.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Sturdy Oil Company-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,698.22
Bill CLs1... 07/15/2020 5370 - Fuel - Trucks -774.49 774.49
Bill CL52... 07/31/2020 5370 - Fuel - Trucks -923.73 923.73
TOTAL -1,698.22 1,698.22
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020  Taylor's Office City- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -67.62
Bill 3245...  07/20/2020 5240 - Office Supplies -24.53 24.53
Bill 3245...  07/21/2020 5240 - Office Supplies -43.09 43.09
TOTAL -67.62 67.62
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Tom's Site Service-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -166.43
Bill 48234  07/19/2020 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -166.43 166.43
TOTAL -166.43 166.43
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 USA Blue Book- ONLINE 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -287.55
Bill 303057  07/21/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -142.00 142,00

5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -145.55 145.55
TOTAL -287.55 287.55
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 WM / Carmel Marina - Office-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -307.46
Bill 9487...  08/01/2020 5150 - Garbage Service -307.46 307.46
TOTAL -307.46 307.46
Check AP 08/19/2020 Santa Cruz County Bank 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -623.25

Page 3



10:56 AM Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District P. 29
August 21, 2020 Check Detail - Operating Account
August 1 - 21, 2020

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

2256 - Vehicle Loan Payable -523.73 523.73

5255 - Interest Expense -99.52 99,52

TOTAL -623.25 623.25
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 A. L. Lease Company, Inc.-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -25.86
Bill 127035 08/18/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -25.86 25.86
TOTAL -25.86 25.86
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Ace Hardware Prunedale-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -175.23
Bill 0493...  07/01/2020 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -54.93 54,93
Bill 0493...  07/02/2020 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -75.36 75.36
Bill 0494...  0714/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.95 30.85
Bill 0495...  07/24/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -13.99 13.89
TOTAL -175.23 175.23
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 ACWA-JPIA (med ins)-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -17,078.41
Bill 0651... 07/31/2020 5050 - Employee Health Insurance -15,683.39 16,683.39
2264 - Employee Insurance Payable -1,395.02 1,395.02

TOTAL -17,078.41 17,078.41
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Agee Electric, Inc.- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -2,488.90
Bill 2225 07/10/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -2,488.90 2,488.90
TOTAL © -2,488.90 2,488.90
Bill Pmt -Check AP 0812112020 Aramark- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -165.35
Bill 7608... 07/03/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -33.07 33.07
Bill 7608...  07/10/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -33.07 33.07
Bill 7608... 07M7/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -33.07 33.07
Bill 7609...  07/24/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -33.07 33.07
Bill 7609...  07/31/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -33.07 33.07
TOTAL -165.35 165.35
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 AT&T 0646-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -215.53
Bill 8/6/2... 08/05/2020 . 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -216.53 215.563
TOTAL -215.53 215.53
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 AT&T 1782-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -33.03
Bill 8/7/2...  08/07/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -33.03 33.03
TOTAL -33.03 33.03
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 AT&T 2627-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -33.03
Bill 8/7i/2... 08/07/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -33.03 33.03
TOTAL : . -33.03 33.03
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020  ATA&T 3439-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -33.03
Bill 8/1/2... 08/01/2020 5310 - Ulilities - Well Site -33.03 33.03
TOTAL -33.03 33.03
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 AT&T 3912-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,340.50
Bill 8/1/2...  08/01/2020 5330 - Telephene -1,340.50 1,340.50

Page 4



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 30

10:56 AM
August 21, 2020 Check Detail - Operating Account
August 1 - 21, 2020
- Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

TOTAL -1,340.50 1,340.50
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 AT&T 5283-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -153.59
Bill 8M1L..  08/11/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -153.59 153.59
TOTAL -163.59 153.59
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 AT&T 6542-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -64.67
Bill 8/7/2...  08/07/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -64.67 64.67
TOTAL -64.67 64.67
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020  AT&T 8925-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -384.98
Bill x080...  08/01/2020 5330 - Telephone -384.98 384.98
TOTAL -384.98 384.98
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Bianchi Alarm Systems-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -78.00
Bill Inv. 2...  08/04/2020 5340 - Burglar Alarm Monitoring -78.00 78.00
TOTAL -78.00 78.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Central Electric Company-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -111.44
Bill A52218  07/31/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -111.44 111.44
TOTAL -111.44 111.44
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Coastal Paving & Excavating- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -16,190.00
Bill Inv. 5...  08/06/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -3,190.00 3,180.00
Bill Inv.5... 08/10/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -1,875.00 1,875.00
Bill Inv. 5...  08/12/2020 1550 - District Office Building -11,125.00 11,125.00
TOTAL -16,190.00 16,180.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Elan-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -877.28
Bill Augu...  08/05/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -586.08 586.08

5370 - Fuel - Trucks -231.21 231.21

5130 - Utilities - Office -59.99 59.99
TOTAL -877.28 877.28
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 GreatAmerica Financial-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -506.43
Bill 2755... 08/05/2020 5160 - Office Equip Rental -506.43 506.43
TOTAL -506.43 506.43
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Green Rubber Kennedy Ag-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -42.54
Bill W-65... 07/31/2020 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -30.60 30.60
Bill W-55...  08/03/2020 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -11.94 11.94
TOTAL -42.54 42.54
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 ICONIX Waterworks (US), Inc-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -861.88
Bill U201...  07/30/2020 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -721.05 721.05
Bill U201... 08/14/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -140.83 140.83
TOTAL -861.88 861.88
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 MBAS-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -135.00
Bill 2008.. 08/11/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tesls -45.00 45,00

Page 5



10:56 AM
August 21, 2020

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Check Detail - Operating Account
August 1 - 21, 2020

P. 81

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Bill 2008...  08/11/2020 5180 - Soil and Water Tests -90.00 90.00
TOTAL -135.00 135.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Mid Valley Supply-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -541.96
Bill 12479... ~ 08/12/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -120.44 120.44
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -60.22 60.22
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.10 30.10
Bill 12480...  08/19/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -120.44 120.44
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.11 30.11
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -30.10 30.10
TOTAL -541.86 541.86
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 NBS-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -7,300.00
Bill 7200... 07/31/2020 5266 - Engineering Svcs-Dist Wide -7,300.00 7,300.00
TOTAL -7,300.00 7,300.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 New Pig Corporation-ONLINE 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -351.77
Bill 4903...  07/29/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -351.77 351.77
TOTAL -361.77 351.77
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/12020 Orkin Pest Control 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -101.40
Bill 326901 07/30/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -101.40 101.40
TOTAL -101.40 101.40
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 PARS-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -478.04
Bill 46112 08/12/2020 5005 - Adminisirative Fees -478.04 478.04
TOTAL -478.04 478.04
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 PG&E 0819-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -9,803.22
Bill 7/6/2...  08/05/2020 5310 - Ulilities - Well Site -5,170.24 5,170.24
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -2,083.05 2,083.05
5310 - Ulilities - Well Site -216.78 216.78
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -878.64 878.64
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -329.59 329.59
5315 - Ulilities - Street Lighting -88.77 88.77
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -1,036.15 1,036.156
TOTAL -9,803.22 9,803.22
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 PG&E 6857-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -5,610.40
Bill 6/26/...  07/31/2020 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -1,918.48 1,918.48
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -1,344.75 1,344.75
5130 - Utilities - Office -237.35 237.356
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -77.96 77.96
5315 - Utilities - Street Lighting -2,031.86 2,031.86
TOTAL -5,610.40 5,610.40
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Pure Water- online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -8,621.70
Bill 364206 08/01/2020 State Water Resources Control Board 5427 - Improvement Project-Springfield -1,831.35 1,831.35
Bill 364207  08/01/2020 State Water Resources Control Board 5427 - Improvement Project-Springfield -6,790.35 6,790.35
TOTAL -8,621.70 8,621.70

Page 6



10:56 AM
August 21, 2020

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
Check Detail - Operating Account
August 1 - 21, 2020

P. 32

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 R & B Company- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -538.94
Bill M743...  07/29/2020 Tony Luis 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -308.42 308.42
Bill M769... 07/31/2020 Tony Luls 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -230.52 230.52
TOTAL -538.94 538.94
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Soil Control Lab-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -300.00
Bill 0080... 08/12/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25,00
Bill 0080...  08/12/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 0080...  08/12/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -75.00 75.00
Bill 0080...  08/12/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50,00
Bill 0080... 08/12/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 0080...  08/12/2020 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -75.00 75.00
TOTAL -300.00 300.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Staples Credit Plan-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -40.50
Bill 6035... 08/09/2020 5240 - Office Supplies -40.50 40.50
TOTAL -40.50 40.50
Bill Pmt -Check AP ‘ 08/21/2020 Sturdy 0il Company-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -944.34
Bill CL53...  08/15/2020 5370 - Fuel - Trucks -944.34 944.34
TOTAL -944.34 944.34
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Tom's Site Service-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -166.43
Bill 48843 08/16/2020 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -166.43 166.43
TOTAL -166.43 166.43
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Univar-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,581.76
Bill 4867...  07/31/2020 §220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -1,681.76 1,681.76
TOTAL -1,581.76 1,681.76
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Valvoline 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -211.83
Bill 11365 07/27/2020 5270 - Automotive - Repair & Maint -102.20 102.20
Bill 11987  08/11/2020 5270 - Automotive - Repair & Maint -109.63 109.63
TOTAL -211.83 211.83
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Wells Fargo- 6120 ONLINE 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -166.99
Bill AUG.... 08/11/2020 5165 - Computer Software -9.99 9.99

5320 - Membership Fees and Dues -50.00 50.00

5165 - Computer Software ~107.00 107.00
TOTAL -166.99 166.99
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Mission Uniform Service-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account ~120.00
Bill 5129... 08/05/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -40.00 40.00
Bill 5130...  08/10/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -40.00 40.00
Bill 5130...  08/17/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -40.00 40.00
TOTAL -120.00 120.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 TIAA Commercial Finance, Inc. 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -214.40
Bill 7438...  08/08/2020 5160 - Office Equip Rental -214.40 214.40
TOTAL -214.40 214.40

Page 7



10:56 AM
August 21, 2020

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Check Detail - Operating Account
August 1 - 21, 2020

P. 33

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Check FDGL 08/03/2020 FDGL 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -38.12

5160 - Office Equip Rental -38.12 38.12
TOTAL -38.12 38.12
Check PARS  08/1212020 US Bank - PARS #6746022400 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -4,226.10

5070 - Employee Retirement -4,225.10 4,225.10
TOTAL -4,225.10 4,225.10
Bill Pmt -Check 24435 08/06/2020 Agustin Sorroza-Moreno 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -960.00
Bill 7127/...  08/03/2020 5010 - Contract Labor -960.00 960,00
TOTAL -960.00 960.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24436  08/06/2020 JJM Painting, Inc. 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -6,617.00
Bill 2020..  07/24/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -6,617.00 6,617.00
TOTAL -6,617.00 6,617.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24437 08/06/2020 Monterey County Assessor 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -200.00
Bill Invoic...  07/16/2020 6260 - Lighting Expenses -200.00 200.00
TOTAL -200.00 200.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24438 08/06/2020 Pajaro Valley Printing 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -2,783.69
Bill 40731 07/21/2020 5200 - Billing Supplies -1,148.03 1,146.03
Bill 40736 07/22/2020 5200 - Billing Supplies -1,365.63 1,365.63
Bill 40777  07/30/2020 5240 - Office Supplies -272,03 272.03
TOTAL -2,783.69 2,783.69
Bill Pmt -Check 24439 08/06/2020 USA North 811 for the Benefit of Di... 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -399.41
Bill 2020...  07/22/2020 5320 - Membership Fees and Dues -399.41 399.41
TOTAL -399.41 399.41
Bill Pmt -Check 24449 08/21/2020 Agustin Sorroza-Moreno 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -800.00
Bill 8/10/...  08/17/2020 5010 - Contract Labor -800.00 800.00
TOTAL -800.00 800.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24450 08/21/2020 Brian & Christina Davis 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -150.00
Bill Depo...  08/19/2020 2121 - Customer Security Deposits -150.00 150.00
TOTAL -150.00 150.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24451 08/21/2020 Grunsky Law Firm 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -2,644.80
Bill Inv. 8...  07/13/2020 5250 - Legal Expenses -2,644.80 2,644.80
TOTAL -2,644.80 2,644.80
Bill Pmt -Check 24452 08/21/2020 Jaimie & Patrick Kilty 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -150.00
Bill Depo...  08/19/2020 2121 - Customer Security Deposits -150.00 150.00
TOTAL -160.00 150.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24453 08/21/2020 JJM Painting, Inc. 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -640.00

Page 8



10:56 AM
August 21, 2020

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
Check Detail - Operating Account
August 1 - 21, 2020

P. 34

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Bill 2020...  08/19/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -640.00 640.00
TOTAL -640.00 640.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24454  08/21/2020 Martin Ramirez 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -150.00
Bill Depo...  08/19/2020 2121 - Gustomer Security Deposits -150.00 150.00
TOTAL -150.00 160.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24455 08/21/2020 Monica Martinez 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -150.00
Bill Depo...  08/19/2020 2121 - Customer Security Deposits -150.00 160.00
TOTAL -160.00 150.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24456  08/21/2020 Pajaro Valley Lock Shop 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -184.85
Bill 120540 08/06/2020 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -184.85 184.85
TOTAL -184.85 184,85
Bill Pmt -Check 24457 08/21/2020 Renee Furtado 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -150.00
Bill Depo...  08/19/2020 2121 - Customer Security Deposits -150.00 150.00
TOTAL -150,00 150.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24458 08/21/2020 Royal Oaks Valero 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -150.00
Bill Depo...  08/19/2020 2121 - Customer Security Deposits -150.00 150.00
TOTAL -150.00 150.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24459  08/21/2020 Santa Cruz County Bank-0190 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -2,637.86
Bill Intere...  08/09/2020 5255 - Interest Expense -2,637.86 2,637.86
TOTAL -2,637.86 2,637.86
Bill Pmt -Check 24460  08/21/2020 The Pied Piper 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -510.00
Bill 921902  08/06/2020 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -510.00 510.00
TOTAL -510.00 510.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24461 08/21/2020 USA North 811 for the Benefit of Di... 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -330.69
Bill 1696...  08/14/2020 5320 - Membership Fees and Dues -330.69 330.69
TOTAL -330.69 330.69

Page 9



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 35

10:59 AM
August 21, 2020 Check Detail - Debt Service Reserve
Accrual Basls As of August 21, 2020
Type Date Num Name Split Amount
1007 - SCCB - Debt Service Reserve
Bill Pmt -Check 08/21/2020 AP First Security Finance -Online 2000 - Accounts Payable -6,431.256
Total 1007 - SCCB - Debt Service Reserve -6,431.25
-6,431.25

TOTAL

Page 1



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 36

10:55 AM
August 21, 2020 Check Detail - Reserve Account
August 1 - 21, 2020
Type Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Bill Pmt -Check Maggiora Bros. Drilling, Inc. 1002 - SCCB Reserve Account -7,046.84
Bill 1807 - CIP-Langley/VP -7,046.84 7,046.84
TOTAL -7,046.84 7,046.84
Check Santa Cruz County Clerk of the Bo... 1002 - SCCB Reserve Account -50.00

5427 - Improvement Project-Springfield -50.00 50.00
TOTAL -50.00 50.00

Page 1



10:41 AM
August 21, 2020

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
Check Detail - Pajaro Park Account
August 1 - 21, 2020

P. 87

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 AT&T 0577 Pajaro Park-Online 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -295.77
Bill 7M13/l...  07/13/2020 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -295.77 205,77
TOTAL -295.77 295.77
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Panther Protective Services- Online 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -450.00
Bill 008-2... 07/27/2020 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -450.00 450.00
TOTAL ' -450.00 450,00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 PG&E 3540 Pajaro Park-Online 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -99.94
Bill 06/19...  07/20/2020 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -99.94 99.94
TOTAL -99.94 99.94
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 AT&T 0577 Pajaro Park-Online 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -296.22
Bill 8/13/...  08/13/2020 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -296.22 . 296.22
TOTAL -296.22 296.22

Page 1



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 38

10:42 AM
August 21, 2020 Check Detail - COP 2010 Account
August 1 - 21, 2020
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Criginal Amount

Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/06/2020 Quinn Company-Online 1032 - SCCB-COP Acct (aka Const.... -4,935.35
Bill E241...  07/27/2020 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -4,935.35 4,935.35
TOTAL -4,935.35 4,936,365
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 Contractor Compliance& Monitorin... 1032 - SCCB-COP Acct (aka Const.... -879.25
Bill Inv. 1...  07/31/2020 5435 - Improvement Project-Pajaro -879.25 879.25
TOTAL -879.25 879.25

Page 1



10:43 AM
August 21, 2020

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Check Detail - Street Maintenance Account

August 1 - 21, 2020

P. 39

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Bill Pmt -Check AP 08/21/2020 AT&T 5203 Street Maint-Online 1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct -192.37
Bill 8/1/2...  08/01/2020 5225 - Street Maintenance -192.37 192,37
TOTAL -192.37 192.37
Bill Pmt -Check 522 08/06/2020 Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Comm Svcs Dist 1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct -354.88
Bill July ... 08/01/2020 5225 - Street Maintenance -354.88 354.88
TOTAL -354.88 354.88
Bill Pmt -Check 523 08/21/2020 Hatch’s Milling 1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct -1,138.16
Bill invoic...  08/06/2020 5225 - Sireet Maintenance -1,138.16 1,138.16
TOTAL -1,138.16 1,138.16

Page 1



OFFICE LOCATIONS:

Temecula — Corporate Headquarters
32605 Temecula Parkway, Suite 100
Temecula, CA 92592

San Francisco —Reglonal Office
870 Market Street, Suite 1223
San Francisco, CA 94102

California Satellite Offices
Atascadero, Davis
Huntington Beach,

Joshua Tree, Riverside
Sacramento, San Jose

www.nbsgov.com

PAJARO /SUNNY MESA

COMMURITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Pajaro / Sunny Mesa
Community Services District
Water Rate Study

Draft Report
August 2020

Aerial view via Goggle Earth
&

\m N Bs helping communities fund tomorrow




P. 41

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1. Purpose & Overview of the StUAY .uueeeceiiiiiiiieiicc s rer e s ee s e 1
B PUTDIOSE .0 snanessassnsmssansnssssssnsansanens sasssnnasessssinss i inns sdibnns ibnnseins sishsdihiinn skt ansmens i ais e bisotons 1
B OvervieW ol The STUOY sossrems s s s s e s S b R VO AN 2
SECtion 2. Water RatE STUCIY v iveivsivsivisustasissin s ysinisss 5o s savins s 155 o0 v rovsats ass S S Hisaas soscvas s 5
A. Key Water RAte STUAY ISSUES.....cviiiiitiiesesreeieeie e srr s seeeere s sreesnesas e e ssesssessasssessessennns 5
B. Water Utility Revenue REQUITEMENTS . .vvicireiiiee e sne s saee e sine s s s 6
C. COSt-0f-SEIVICE ANAIYSIS 1eccveeieeciecieiite et a e s be s saa s 8
D. Rate DeSIZN ANAIYSIS .vveiirieiiieeiiiiiietssireeee e sessse s s esseesrr e st e st eenn e esneesanneesannennnns 14
E. Current vs. Proposet Water RALes .rerimmmirasismsisissinsssismmssssissssmisisisissssnssspes 15
F. Comparison of Current and Proposed Monthly Water Bills ..........ccccoviiiiiiniiiinicniennne. 16
G. Drought Rate Analysis ...uwiommmmmsim ssvisiivissmivmmisisiessnes avasiiis s s sssiess 18
Section 3. Recommendations & NeXE STEPS uuuiiiiiiiireieiiie i s as s s ssnnes 20
A. Consultant RecOmMmMENdatioNS ..o 20
ST e Y =Y o P 20
C. NBS’ Principal Assumptions and Considerations ........cccviiiieneeineesninnee e s sinesennes 20
Section 4. Abbreviations and ACrONYMS ... s 21
Appendix A. Detailed Water Study Tables and FIgures.......ccevvnveinieniiiiini i, 27
\\3 N BS E:Iéi;])]’aor .5 ;;:nggnsfleis:ucgir::gg;gy Services District — Draft Water Rate Study TOC



P. 42

TABLE OF FIGURES

Figure 1. Primary Components of @ Rate STUAY ... 2
Figure 2. Summary of Water Revenue Requir@ments. ..ot i/
Figure 3. SUMmary of RESEIVE FUNAS .cccvriiiiiiiii it e eas et 8
Figure 4. Summary of Reserve FUNds .....ccoveveriininncnnsniens e R A T S T 8
Figure 5. Cost Functionalization SUMMAIY ... s v e 9
Figure 6. Summary of Rate Revenue ReqUiremMents........ccovimriniiiiinnei e sns e eresssesnsaens 10
Figure 7. Water Consumption by CUSTOMET CIA55 ...vivcirereriaiinienmiesessness s sisissessesssnssnsssssnassssnessssesassne s 11
Figure 8. Peaking Factors bY CUSTOMET Class .....ccciuirisivnrresiersuesssnisssissassesiesssssnssss ssesssssussssssnsssssse ssansssasssonssnssans 11
Figure 9. Number of Accounts by CUStOMEr Class iuvinimmiisissssissississnssesisseisssinsiussisassnsinsnsstasssnsssnsranirnssse 12
Figure 10. Cost Allocation Methodology ...t 12
Figure 11. Capacity-Related, Customer-Related & Fire Protection Costs Allocation .......cccceviviniiiniiininninnn, 13
Figure 12. Meter EQUIVAlENCY FACTOTS ....covviiinsiriinessssimmoinisiisisnsasins atnssasisss ianssss istasans sssonarinsasssasssasasssassrasin 13
Figure 13. Summary of Water Consumption ..........iiiniiusinismsaeesissssssrssses 14
Figure 14. Fixed Meter Charges for FY 2021/22 ... s e ssesss sasissssssssssssssssssanssssnns 15
Figure 15. Calculated Variable Charges for FY 2021/22 ..c.cuuaiimimmmissisiisossssessissaasaissasssssssnsssssnssisn 15
Figure 16. Current and Proposed Water RaleS........c. i ssssssssssssnssesassasenis 16
Figure 17. Monthly Bill Comparison for Single Family CuStomers ..o 17
Figure 18. Monthly Water Bill Comparison for Commercial CUSTOMETS .....cccccvvviiiiiiciiiiiniii, 17
Figure 19. Expenses Directly Impacted by Conservation ... e 18
Figure 20. Calculation of Commodity Costs at Various Levels of Conservation ..., 18
Figure 21. Proposed 5-Year Drought Rate SChedule ........cooiciiciniicici e s 19
‘\\D N B 3 g?iz:);oré';E;nrjsl‘;ﬂis:u(;i:ntn;téggy Services District — Draft Water Rate Study TOF



P. 43

Section 1. Purpose & Overview of the Study

A. Purpose

The Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District (“PSMCSD” or “District”) retained NBS to update the
previous water rate study completed in 2015. The 2015 study addressed the ability of the utility to meet
future funding requirements, to ensure greater financial stability, to examine drought impacts in light of
drought-related water shortages and conservation concerns. Most significantly, it undertook the task of
combining water rates that were previously individualized for 10 service areas into a single, District-wide
rate schedule for the purpose of improving rate design, making it more fair and equitable to customers as
a whole.

This report summarizes the current analysis of the water rate study performed by NBS, including direction
from District staff and the Board of Directors to retain the current District-wide approach to rate design.
Other key decisions included an overall strategy for funding capital improvement projects and the level of
rate increases necessary to meet projected expenses. The methodology, assumptions, and rate
alternatives are described herein.? -

The rates developed in this study are intended to meet certain legal requirements (e.g., California
Constitution Article XIll D, Section 6, commonly referred to as Proposition 218 [Prop 218]) and comply
with general industry standard cost-of-service principles. This report will assist the District in its effort to
maintain transparent communications with the residents and businesses it serves. The rate study process
included working cooperatively with District staff and the Board to develop water rates that align with the
District’s broader goals and objectives.

Key Study Services & Tasks

This rate study was intended to provide the District with practical and implementable solutions and
recommendations. In addition to ensuring that water rates collect sufficient revenue to meet the annual
operating costs and fund capital improvements, other key issues that were addressed include:

Rate Structure— After discussing the current rates and potential alternative rate structures, the Board
directed NBS to retain the current rate configuration. Therefore, water rates should continue to collect
fixed and variable charges on a 30/70 basis and use a single-tiered volumetric rate.

District Policies — NBS reviewed the District’s reserve fund policies and other financial practices.

Financial Planning — The long-range financial plan was closely examined and adjusted to best meet annual
operating expenses and projected capital improvement costs.

Drought Rates — NBS calculated drought rates that will meet revenue requirements under reduced
water use scenarios and provide revenue stability during various drought stages.

1The detailed water rate analysis is provided in Appendix A.

rm N B " Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 1
[ Prepared by NBS — August 2020



P. 44

B. Overview of the Study

As in the previous rate study, this study addresses the comprehensive technical components outlined in
Figure 1: '

1. Financial Plan —identifies the net revenue requirements for the utility.
2. Cost of Service Analysis — determines the cost of providing service to each customer class.

3. Rate Design Analysis — evaluates the rate design and results in fair and equitable fixed and
volumetric rates.

Figure 1. Primary Components of a Rate Study

3 : COST-OF-
FINANCIAL 2 SERVICE : ; RATE DESIGN
PLAN ANALYSIS
S Y, ANALYSIS
Compares current sources and Proportionately allocates the revenue Considers what rate structure will
uses of funds and determines the requirements to the customer classes best meet the District’s need to
revenue needed from rates and and tiers in compliance with industry collect rate revenue from each
projects rate adjustments. standards and State Law. customer class.

These steps are intended to follow industry standards and reflect the fundamental principles of cost-of-
service rate making embodied in the American Water Works Association (AWWA) Principles of Water
Rates, Fees, and Charges,” also referred to as the M1 Manual. The rate study also addresses requirements
under Proposition 218 that rates: (1) not exceed the cost of providing the service, and (2) be proportionate
to the cost of providing service for all customers. These three steps represent the chronology of the rate
study process. Detailed tables and figures documenting the development of the proposed rates are
provided in Appendix A.

Financial Plan

As a part of this rate study, NBS projected detailed revenues and expenditures on a cash-basis for the next
five years. The amount of rate revenue required, which ideally allows maintaining reserves at the
recommended levels, is known as the net revenue requirement. As current rate revenue falls short of the
net revenue requirement, rate adjustments, or more accurately adjustments in the total revenue collected
from rates, are recommended. The assumptions and data used to develop the financial plan, which in turn
determine the proposed rate increases, are presented in greater detail in the Appendix.

2 Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1 Manual, American Water Works Association,
Seventh Edition, 2017

(ﬁ N B " Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 2
k‘:-} Prepared by NBS — August 2020



P. 45

Water Rate Design Analysis

Rate design is used to examine rate alternatives that will meet the District’s objectives. One of the
objectives in this analysis is to send proper price signals to water customers about the actual cost of their
water usage. This is reflected in both the magnitude of the rate adjustments and the rate structure design.
In other words, both the amount of revenue collected and the way in which the revenue is collected from
customers are important.

Several broader criteria are also typically considered in setting rates and developing sound rate structures,
The fundamentals of this process have been documented in a number of rate-setting manuals, such as
the American Water Works Association (AWWA) Manual M1. The foundation for evaluating rate
structures is generally credited to James C. Bonbright’s Principles of Public Utility Rates,® which outlines
pricing policies, theories, and economic concepts along with various rate designs. The following is a
simplified list of the attributes of a sound rate structure:

o Rates should be easy to understand from the customer’s perspective.

o Rates should be easy to administer from the utility’s perspective.

o Rates should promote the efficient allocation of the resource.

o Rates should be equitable and non-discriminating (that is, cost based).

e There should be continuity in the ratemaking philosophy over time.

o Rates should address other utility policies (e.g.,, encouraging conservation and economic

development).
o Rates should provide month-to-month and year-to-year revenue stability.

The following are the basic rate design criteria that were considered in this study:

Rate Structure Basics —The vast majority of rate structures contain a fixed, or minimum, charge in
combination with a volumetric charge. The revenue requirements for each customer class are collected
from both fixed monthly charges and variable commodity charges. Based on direction from District staff
and the Board, the rates proposed in this report continue with a design that collects 30 percent (30%) of
rate revenue from the fixed charge and 70 percent (70%) from the variable commodity charge.*

Fixed Charges —Fixed charges can be called base charges, minimum monthly charges, fixed meter charges,
etc., and typically increase by meter size. From a financial stability perspective, if utilities recover all of
their fixed costs from fixed charges and all of their variable costs from volumetric charges, fluctuations in
water sales revenues are directly offset by reductions or increases in variable expenses. When rates are
set in this manner, they provide the greatest revenue stability for the utility.

Volumetric (Consumption-Based) Charges —In contrast to fixed charges, variable costs, such as purchased
water, the cost of electricity used in pumping water, and the cost of chemicals for treatment tend to

3 James C. Bonbright, Albert L. Danielsen, and David R. Kamerschen, Principles of Public Utility Rates, Public Utilities Report, Inc.,
Second Edition, 1988, p. 383-384.

4The California Urban Water Conservation Council states in its best management practices (BMP 1.4) that the goal of conservation
pricing “..Is ta recover the maximum amount of water sales revenue from volumetric rates that is consistent with water utility
costs...” However, water utilities should develop allocations that reflect their actual costs.

(\\ N B * Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 3
D) Prepared by NBS — August 2020



P. 46

change with the quantity of water produced. For a water utility, variable charges are based on metered
consumption and charged on a dollar-per-unit cost (i.e., per 100 cubic feet, or one hundred cubic feet
(HCF), which is approximately 748 gallons). Under a uniform, or single-tier, rate structure, the cost per
unit does not change with consumption and provides a simple and straightforward approach that is easy
to understand from the customer’s perspective and simple to administer from the utility’s perspective,

Regulatory Issues

Drought and Water Conservation — In response to the severe drought conditions, Governor Jerry Brown
declared a State of Emergency throughout California on January 17, 2014, The Governor then issued
Executive Order B-29-15 on April 1, 2015, mandating statewide water conservation of 25 percent (25%).
Although the drought has now passed and these mandates have expired, the District still faces the threat
of future droughts and new State mandates.

According to District records, from Fiscal Year 2013/14 to 2018/19, the District’s total annual consumption
decreased by 16 percent (16%) from 293,554 hcf to 245,192 hcf. While conservation is good for many
reasons, it introduces financial risks to the utility that impacts both revenue and expenses. Drought rates
are the mechanism needed to change the consumption charges in response to these risks. Therefore,
District staff have asked NBS to develop the drought rates presented in Section 2 of this report.

Key Financial Assumptions
The following is a summary of the key financial assumptions used in the water rate analyses:

e Funding of Capital Projects — Without implementing rate increases, the District would find it
difficult to pay for the planned capital improvements. Capital costs attributable to growth, or
future customers, are assumed to be funded with capacity fee revenue. All capital projects listed
in the financial plan are from the District’s capital improvement program.

o Reserve Targets — The District maintains reserves for operations, capital rehabilitation and
replacement, and other specific needs that are set at levels jointly recommended by District staff
and NBS. Details of the utility’s reserve targets are covered in the following section of this report.

o Inflation and Growth Projections — Assumptions regarding inflation were incorporated into
projected future revenues and expenses:
v Customer growth is assumed-to be zero (0%).

v' General inflation is 3.2% annually based on the five-year average change in the Consumer
Price Index for All Urban Consumers in the San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward areas.?

v Labor cost inflation is 4.0% annually based on the five-year average change in the San
Francisco County Employment and Wage Inflation Index (for all industries) per the BLS.

The next section discusses the water rate study in further detail.

5 Per the Bureau of Labor Statistics website (BLS).

"m N BS Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 4
A 3 Prepared by NBS — August 2020



P. 47

Section 2. Water Rate Study

A. Key Water Rate Study Issues
The District’s water rate analysis was undertaken with several specific objectives, including:

o Generating sufficient revenue to meet rising operating and maintenance costs as well as projected
capital funding requirements;

o Incorporating reduced consumption levels and likely water conservation;

o Maintaining reserve fund levels to ensure future financial stahility for the water utility;

o Developing a funding strategy for capital improvement costs that balances the impact on
customer water bills with the timing and need for significant improvements to minimize the
impact on ratepayers;

o Developing rates that continue to provide revenue stability and maintain the current rate
structure (i.e., 30/70 split between fixed and variable charges); and,

o Complying with the legal requirements of Proposition 218 to ensure overall equity and fairness
among customer classes.

In light of the District’s decision to retain the current rate design, the fixed and volume-based charges
were updated based on net revenue requirements, number of customers, water consumption, and other
relevant information provided by the District. The following are the basic components of this update:

o Cost Allocations: The water revenue requirements were “functionalized” into three categories:
(1) fixed capacity costs; (2) variable (or volume-based) costs; and, (3) customer service costs.
These functionalized costs were then used to develop unit costs based on various factors, such as
water consumption, peaking factors, and number of accounts by meter size.

o Revenue Requirements by Customer Class: The total revenue that needs to be collected from
each customer class was determined using the functional costs and allocation factors. For
example, volume-related costs are allocated based on the water consumption of each customer
class, while customer costs are allocated based on the number of meters. Once the costs are
allocated and the net revenue requirement for each customer class is determined, collecting the
revenue requirements from each customer class is addressed within the rate design.

o Rate Design and Fixed vs. Variable Costs: The revenue requirements for each customer class are
collected through a combination of fixed monthly service charges and volumetric rates. The cost-
of-service analysis indicated that approximately 79% of the District’s costs are fixed and 21% are
variahle.® However, the rate design collects 30% of the revenue from fixed charges and 70% from
variable charges. Under California law and industry practices, there is flexibility regarding the
actual percentages collected from fixed and variable rates, so this 30% fixed/70% variable rate
design complies with these standards.

6 Fire meter costs, which account for approximately 3% of total costs, are considered fixed costs.

‘/m N BS Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 5
W Prepared by NBS — August 2020




B. Water Utility Revenue Requirements

It is important for municipal utilities to maintain reasonable reserves in order to handle emergencies,
fund working capital, maintain a good credit rating, and generally follow sound financial management
practices. Rate adjustments are governed by the need to meet operating and capital costs, maintain
adequate debt coverage, and build reasonable reserve funds.

A 20-year financial plan was prepared as a part of this study, although the District is only planning to
adopt rate increases for the next five years (the maximum allowed under Prop 218). The current state of
the District’s water utility, with regard to these objectives, is as follows:

o Meeting Net Revenue Requirements: For Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 through FY 2025/26, the
projected annual net revenue requirement (that is, total annual expenses plus debt service and
rate-funded capital costs, less non-rate revenues) for the District averages approximately $2.8
million. The net revenue requirement increases from $2.3 million to over $3 million by the end of
the five-year period. Without rate adjustments, the District has a projected to deficit of $284,000
in FY 2021/22, which would grow to nearly $1 million annually by the end of the five-year period.

o Funding Capital Improvement Projects: The District must also be able to fund necessary capital
improvements in order to maintain current service levels and fund strategic goals. District staff
has identified roughly $3.3 million in expected capital expenditures for FY 2021/22 through
2025/26. With the recommended rate increases, these expenditures can be accomplished while
increasing reserves to the minimum recommended target.

o Building and Maintaining Reserve Funds: Reserve funds provide a basis for a utility to cope with
fiscal emergencies, such as revenue shortfalls, asset failure, and natural disasters. Reserve policies
provide guidelines for sound financial management, with an overall long-range perspective to
maintain financial solvency and mitigate these financial risks. The proposed rate increases would
allow the District to reach the recommended reserve target by the end of the rate adoption
period. The reserve funds for the Utility are considered unrestricted reserves and consist of the
following:

e The Operating Reserve is equal to 90 days of operating expenses (reaching approximately
$510,000 by FY 2025/26). An Operating Reserve is intended to promote financial viability
in the event of any short-term fluctuation in revenues and/or expenditures. Fluctuations
in revenue can be caused by weather patterns, the natural fluctuations of cash during
billing cycles, natural variability in demand-based revenue streams (such as volumetric
charges), and — particularly in periods of economic distress —changes or trends in age of
receivables.

e The Capital Rehabilitation and Replacement Reserve is equal to 6% of the District’s net
capital assets (approximately $275,000 by the end of FY 2025/26), which is set aside to
address long-term and routine capital system replacement and rehabilitation needs.

e Debt Reserve equal to the reserve requirement for the outstanding 2015 Pajaro / Sunny
Mesa Revenue Refunding Bonds and the newly issued 2020 Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Revenue
Bonds to fund the new generator project totaling approximately $260,000.

h N BS Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report . 6
™ Prepared by NBS — August 2020

P. 48



e Other Reserves include a bond project fund and connection fee reserve, both of which
are considered restricted funds and not available to cover any operating costs or planned
capital improvements.

Inflation and Growth Projections: Assumptions regarding cost inflation were made in order to
project future revenues and expenses for the study period. Based in the final budget for FY
2020/21, the District is not expecting any customer growth during the 5-year rate adoption
period. This factor was used in the analysis for some revenues and expenses, while all other
factors were set by price indices provided by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.”

Maintaining Adequate Bond Coverage: The District is required by the rate covenant of the 2015
and 2020 revenue honds to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of at least 1.15. The benefit of
maintaining a higher coverage ratio is that it strengthens the District’s credit rating which can help
lower the interest rates for debt-funded capital projects and, in turn, reduce annual debt service
payments. It is projected that, without the recommended rate increases, the District will not be

P. 49

able to meet the debt coverage requirement in FY 2022/23 and thereafter.

In order to avoid an annual deficit, the District must implement rate increases beginning in FY 2021/22
and throughout the 5-year rate adoption period. These rate increases are necessary to fund operating
expenses, planned capital projects, debt service obligations, and maintain reserves at the recommended

targets by FY 2025/26.

Figure 2 summarizes the sources and uses of funds, net revenue requirements, and the recommended
annual percent adjustments in total rate revenue under the proposed financial plan. A detailed version of
the water utility’s proposed 10-year financial plan is included in Appendix A.

Figure 2. Summary of Water Revenue Requirements

|_

Summary of Sources and Uses of Funds and Net
Revenue Requirements

Budget
FY 2019/20

_Budget
FY 2020/21

Fv2021/22 |

FY2022/23 | EY2023/24 | FY2024/25 | FY2025/26

Projected

Sources of Water Funds
Rate Revenue Under Prevailing Rates $§ 2,023,700 | $ 2,052,600 | $ 2,052,600 | $ 2,052,600 | 5 2,052,600 | $ 2,052,600 | $ 2,052,600
Non-Rate Revenues 66,195 67,095 67,095 67,095 67,095 67,095 67,095
Interest Earnings 5,130 5,130 - - = 5 =
Total Sources of Funds $ 2,095,025 | $ 2,124,825 | § 2,119,695 | § 2,119,695 | $ 2,119,695 | § 2,119,695 [ $ 2,119,695
Uses of Water Funds
Operating Expenses $ 1,798,385 | 6 1,797,450 | $ 1,763,642 | $ 1,828,843 [ S 1,896480 | $ 1,966,647 [ § 2,039,438
Debt Service 188,418 228,718 295,883 300,508 299,700 293,625 302,263
Rate-Funded Capital Expenses - 235,366 344,317 567,483 696,806 943,769 746,406
Total Use of Funds $ 1,986,803 [ $ 2,261,534 | 5 2,403,841 | 5 2,606,833 | § 2,892,986 | $ 3,204,040 | $ 3,088,106
Surplus (Deficiency) before Rate Increase § 108223 |$ (136,709) § (284,146)| § (577,138)| &  (773,291)| $ (1,084,345)| $ (968,411)
Additional Revenue from Rate Increases - - 307,850 591,149 855,524 1,088,174 1,245,212
Surplus (D $ 108223 |$ (136,709) $ 23,744 |$  14011|% 82,233 [ $ 3,828 |$ 276,801
0.00% 0.00% 15.00% 28.80% 41.68% 53,01% 60.67%
Net Revenue Requirement® $ 1,915,478 | $ 2,189,309 [ § 2,336,746 | $ 2,629,738 | $ 2,825,891 | § 3,136,945 | $ 3,021,011

1, Total Use of Funds less non-rate revenues and interest earnings. This is the annual amount needed from water rates.

7 Website: https://www.bls.gov/

,m N B " Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report
\ . Prepared by NBS — August 2020



Figure 3 summarizes the projected reserve fund balances and reserve targets for the water utility’s
unrestricted funds. A more detailed version of the proposed 5-year financial plan is included in the
Appendix. As can be seen in Figure 3, given the proposed rate adjustments, reserves will meet the
minimum target by FY 2025/26.

Figure 3. Summary of Reserve Funds

Beginning Reserve Fund Balances and Budget 7! ~ Budget Projected

Recommended Reserve Targets FY2019/20 | FY2020/21 | FY2021/22 | FY2022/23 | FY2023/24 | FY2024/25 | FY2025/26
Operating Reserve

Ending Balance $ 267693 (% 130984 (§ 154728 |5 192343 |$ 327215| S 387,894 S 510,000
Recommended Minimum Torget 450,000 449,000 441,000 457,000 474,000 492,000 510,000
Capital Rehabilitation & Replacement Reserve

Ending Balance $ 174753 |$ 106500 (S 106500 | $ 106500 |$ 106,500 | $ 106,500 | $ 320,888
Recommended Minimum Target 91,600 106,500 123,300 152,700 188,600 237,900 274,200
DebtReserve

Ending Balance $ 147820 % 149,327 |$ 150,850 |$ 152,389 |§ 153,943 | $ 155513 | § 157,099
Recommended Minimum Target 147,820 261,220 261,220 261,220 261,220 261,220 261,220
Other Reserves

Ending Balance $ 1694138 173322 |S 177271 |$ 181,261 (S 185291 |$ 189,363 [ S 193,476
Recommended Minimum Target

) R O Fm‘lihn' [§  ssl ‘?UHEW 4

Tatn!Rmmmended’MlnImumTarger $ 639420|8 B815720|5 825520 $ mm $ 923,820 $ 991,120 3 1,045420

Figure 4 presents a graphical representation of the projected reserve fund levels.

Figure 4. Summary of Reserve Funds

Ending Cash Balances vs.

Recommended Reserve Targets
$900,000 < - - e o moem m meimm e e e — S em—m e e

[=3Capital Rehabilitation and Replacement Reserve
B Operating Reserve
| $750,000 =} inimum Target Ending Balance - Excludes

| 500,000

£450,000

$300,000

$150,000 -1

i $0 - - - —
! 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

| Fiscal Year Ending Iune 30

C. Cost-of-Service Analysis

Once the net revenue requirements are determined, the cost-of-service analysis proportionately
distributes the revenue requirements to each of the customer classes. The cost-of-service analysis consists
of two major components: (1) the classification of expenses, and (2) the allocation of costs to customer
classes. Costs are classified according to the function they serve. All costs in the District’s budget are

{\“ N B " Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 8
- Prepared by NBS — August 2020



P. 51

allocated to each component of the rate structure in proportion to the level of service required by
customers. The levels of service are related to volumes of peak and non-peak demand, infrastructure
capacity, and customer service. These are based on allocation factors, such as water consumption,
peaking factors, and number of accounts by meter size. Ultimately, a cost-of-service analysis is intended
to result in rates that are proportional to the cost of providing service to each customer.

Classification and Allocation

Most costs are not typically allocated 100 percent to fixed or variable categories, but rather allocated to
multiple functions of water service. In the study, costs were classified using the commodity-demand
method found in the AWWA M1 Manual.® In accordance with this method, budgeted costs were
“classified” into three categories: (1) commodity-related costs; (2) capacity-related costs; and, (3)
customer-related costs. The classification process provides the basis for allocating costs to various
customer classes based on the cost causation (classification) components described below:

o Commodity-related costs are variable costs that change as the volume of water produced and
delivered changes. These commonly include the costs of energy related to pumping for
transmission and distribution and source of supply. Each customer class is allocated commodity-
related costs based on the percentage of total consumption by that class.

o Capacity-related costs are fixed costs associated with infrastructure costs and how they are sized
to meet the maximum, or peak demand. This includes both operating costs and capital
infrastructure costs incurred to accommodate peak system capacity events.

o Customer-related costs are costs associated with having a customer connected to the water
system, such as costs for meter reading, postage, billing, and other administrative duties.
Customer service costs do not differ among the various meter sizes; therefore, these costs are
spread equally among all meters. Each customer class is allocated customer-related costs based
on the percentage of total meters in that class.

These costs were reviewed and allocated to these cost causation components which are then used as the
basis for establishing new water rates in the form of fixed and variable charges. The tables in Appendix A
show how the District’s expenses were classified and allocated to these cost causation components.
Figure 5 below summarizes how cost components are grouped with respect to fixed and variable
components.

Figure 5. Cost Functionalization Summary

Revenue Requirements

" Variable Costs'

PR~
T Gommodity
i ‘4 A Gosts)

8 Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1, AWWA, Seventh Edition, 2017, p. 83.

(ﬁ N B " Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 9
. Q Prepared by NBS — August 2020



P. 52

Ideally, utilities should recover all of their fixed costs from fixed charges and all of their variable costs from
volumetric charges. When this is the case, fluctuations in water sales revenues would be directly offset by
reductions or increases in variable expenses. When rates are set in this manner, they provide greater
revenue stability for the utility. However, other factors should also be considered when designing water
rates, such as conservation, ease of understanding, ease of administration, and the impact on customer
bills.®

Based on the District’s projected costs, the cost-of-service analysis resulted in a distribution that is
approximately 79 percent fixed and 21 percent variable. Since consistency in rate design is an important
consideration for the District, the Board decided to maintain the current rate structure that collects 30
percent (30%) of revenue from fixed charges and 70 percent (70%) from variable rates.

Figure 6 summarizes the allocation of net revenue requirements to each cost component for the current
rate structure.

Figure 6. Summary of Rate Revenue Requirements

Classification Components

r % fa

Commodity-Related Costs $ 1,652,343 70%
Capacity-Related Costs 518,952 22%
Customer-Related Costs 114,514 5%
Fire Protection-Related Costs 74,681 3%
Net Revenue Requirement $ 2,360,490 100%

Characteristics of Water Customers by Class

Customer classes are determined by combining customers with similar demand characteristics and types
of use into categories that reflect the cost differentials to serve each type of customer. The amount of
consumption, peaking factors, and number of meters by size are used in the cost-of-service analysis to
allocate costs to customer classes and determine the appropriate rate structures for each. The District’s
most recent consumption data is summarized in Figure 7, peaking factors in Figure 8, and number of
customers by customer class is shown in Figure 9.

Figure 7 below summarizes the most recent consumption data by customer class and represents the
expected percent of consumption over the 5-year rate period.

9 Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1, AWWA, Seventh Edition, pp. 5 and 96.

m N B " Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report ‘ 10
:3 Prepared by NBS — August 2020



Figure 7. Water Consumption by Customer Class

Development of the COMMODITY Allocation Factors

FY 2018/19 | Percent of Total
Customer Class ;
Volume (hcf) Volume
Single Family Residential 124,878 50.9%
Multi Family Residential 38,296 15.6%
Commercial 69,126 28.2%
Industrial 3,612 1.5%
Institutional 8,432 3.4%
Irrigation 847 0.3%
Fire Service 0 0.0%
Total 245,192 100%

P. 53

1. Consumption data source: Data Request NBS-Water Rate Study 2020.xlsx

Peaking factors, or peaking consumption, for each customer class are shown in Figure 8. A “peaking
factor” is the relationship of each customer class’ average use to its peak use, which is generally during
the summer months. A peaking factor is indicative of a customer’s maximum water demand and the
impact of each customer connected to the water system. Both operating costs and capital infrastructure
costs incurred to accommodate peak system capacity events are generally allocated to each meter size
according to its contribution to peak capacity events. These peaking factors are used to allocate capacity-
related costs to each customer class.

Figure 8. Peaking Factors by Customer Class
Development of the CAPACITY (MAX MONTH) Allocation Factors

Average

Peak Monthly Peak Month

[\ EVEELY

Customer Class

Monthly Use
{hcf)

Use (hcf)’

Factor

Capacity Factor

Single Family Residential 10,407 15,646 1.50 53.7%
Multi Family Residential 3,191 4,165 131 14.3%
Commercial 5,760 7,878 137 27.0%
Industrial 301 396 131 1.4%
Institutional 703 940 134 3.2%
Irrigation 71 130 1.84 0.4%
Fire Service 0 0 0.00 0.0%
Total 20,433 29,154 1.43 100%

1. Based on peak monthly data (peak daydata notavailable).

The number of customers for each customer class (also known as customer allocation factors) is shown in

Figure 9.

‘ \\ N BS Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report
W) Prepared by NBS — August 2020

11



P. 54

Figure 9. Number of Accounts by Customer Class

Development of the Customer Allocation Factors

Number of
Customer Class : Percent of Total
Meters

Single Family Residential® 1,063 75.8%
Multi Family Residential® 101 7.2%
Commercial® 180 12.8%
Industrial 1 0.1%
Institutional 12 0.9%
Irrigation 19 1.4%
Unknown Connection Type 0 0.0%
Fire Service 26 1.9%

Total 1,402 100.0%

1. Number of meters is from files: MOM Vega Customer Report FY 2019.xlsx &
MOM Pajaro Customer Report FY 2019 v2.xlsx.

2. Meter counts include 34 customers in the Springfield area - 31 SFR, 1 MFR, and 2
Commercial. According to the District, these customers are charged a monthlyfee
of $25.00, and only have a few meters thatare notin use.

Costs Allocated to Customer Classes

Costs are allocated to each customer class based on the customer characteristics of each class in order to
reflect the cost differentials to serve each type of customer. Figure 10 summarizes how the costs for each
cost causation component from Figure 6 are allocated to each customer class.

Figure 10. Cost Allocation Methodology

sAllocated based on peak water consumption by customer class
*Then, allocated based on the hydraulic capacity of each meter size

e Allocated based on the total number of meters

sAllocated based on the hydraulic capacity of fire meters

Commodity;
Related!Costs

*Allocated based on water consumption by customer class

The costs allocated to each causation component are assigned to each customer class using the cost
allocation methodology described in Figure 10. This process is described in the following sections.

Capacity-Related Costs

The allocation of the capacity-related costs is summarized in Figure 11. Capacity-related costs are those
costs associated with constructing and operating the water system to ensure there is sufficient capacity
in the system to meet the demand of each meter connected. These costs are first allocated to customer
classes based on monthly peak capacity factors and then by hydraulic capacity.

Larger meters have the potential to use more of the system’s capacity compared to smaller meters. The
potential capacity demanded is proportional to the maximum safe meter capacity each meter size as

\ﬁ N B > Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 12
-) Prepared by NBS — August 2020



established by the AWWA.* The meter capacity factors used in this study are shown in the third and fifth
columns of Figure 12,

Figure 11. Capacity-Related, Customer-Related & Fire Protection Costs Allocation

Customer Classes

Classification Components (Fixed Costs)
Capacity-Related | Customer-Related

Fire Protection
Costs

Total

% of COS
Rev. Req't.

Single Family Residential 278,501 86,825 365,326

Multi Family Residential 74,136 8,250 - 82,385 12%
Commercial 140,222 14,702 - 154,924 22%
Industrial 7,044 82 - 7,126 1%
Institutional 16,736 980 - 17,716 3%
Fire Service - 2,124 74,681 76,804 11%
Total Net Revenue Requirement S 518,952 | § 114514 | § 74,681 | § 708,147 100%

Customer Classes

Figure 12. Meter Equivalency Factors
Fire Service Meters

Standard Meters

Meter Capacity

Equivalency to

Meter Capacity

Equivalency to

(GPM) 5/8 x 3/4-inch (GPM) 5/8 x 3/4-inch
Displacement Meters Displacement Meters
5/8 x 3/4 inch 20 1.00 20 1.00
3/4 inch 30 1.00 30 1.50
1linch 50 2.50 50 2.50
1.5inch 100 5.00 100 5.00
2 inch 160 8.00 160 8.00
Turbine Class 1 Fire Service Type 1 & Il
3inch 350 17.50 350 17.50
4inch 630 31.50 700 35.00
6 inch 1,300 65.00 1,600 80.00
Turbine Class 2 Fire Service Type 1 & Il
8 inch 2,800 140.00 2,800 140.00
10inch 4,200 210.00 4,400 220.00
12 inch 5,300 265.00 N/A N/A

A “hydraulic capacity factor” is calculated by dividing the maximum capacity, or potential flow of large
meters, by the capacity of the base meter size which is typically the most common residential meter size
(in this case a 5/8 x 3/4-inch meter). For example, Figure 12 shows the hydraulic capacity of a two-inch
meter is 8.0 times that of a 5/8 x 3/4-inch meter and, therefore, the capacity component of the fixed
meter charge is 8.0 times that of the 5/8 x 3/4-inch meter.

The actual number of meters by size is multiplied by the corresponding capacity ratios to calculate the
total number of equivalent meters. The number of equivalent meters is used as a proxy for the potential
demand that each customer places on the water system and the percentage of capacity-related costs
distributed to each meter size by the Percent of Total Hydraulic Capacity.

1oprinciples of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1, AWWA, seventh edition, 2017, p. 338.

" Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 13
Prepared by NBS — August 2020

ONB

P. 55



P. 3B

The fire protection cost allocation is also summarized in Figure 11. Only commercial fire meters are
allocated this cost component. A direct allocation is made in the classification step in the cost-of-service
analysis to represent their share of system capacity and other related operations and maintenance costs
and then allocated to the fire meters through Hydraulic Capacity.

Customer-Related Costs

The customer-related cost allocation is also summarized in Figure 11. Customer-related costs are
comprised of those costs related to reading and maintaining meters, customer billing and collection, and
other customer service-related costs. The customer service costs do not differ among the various meter
sizes; therefore, these costs are spread equally among all meters. Each customer class is allocated
customer-related costs based on the percentage of total meters that are in that class.

Commodity-Related Costs

The commodity-related cost allocation begins by analyzing water consumption data for the District, as
shown in Figure 13. Commodity-related costs are those costs related to the amount of water sold and
commonly include the costs of energy related to pumping for transmission and distribution, source of
supply, and chemicals used in the treatment process. Each customer class is allocated commodity-related
costs based on the percentage of total consumption by that class.

Figure 13. Summary of Water Consumption

Water
Number of ’ % of Total Rate
Customer Classes Consumption
Meters Revenue

(ccf/yr)
Single Family Residential 1,063 124,878 51%
Multi Family Residential 101 38,296 16%
Commercial 180 69,126 28%
Industrial 1 3,612 1%
Institutional 12 8,432 3%
Irrigation 19 847 0%
Fire Service 26 0 0%
Total 1,402 245,192 100%

D. Rate Design Analysis

The process of evaluating the water rate structure provides the opportunity to incorporate a number of
rate-design objectives and policies, including revenue stability, equity among customer classes, and water
conservation. NBS thoroughly reviewed rate design alternatives and methodologies with District Staff and
the District Board during the 2015 rate study, including the percentage of revenue collected from fixed
vs. variable charges and differentiating rates by customer class. The District Board decided to not re-
evaluate rate design alternatives. Therefore, the current rate design was updated.

Fixed Charges
The fixed meter charge recognizes that the water utility incurs fixed costs regardless of whether customers
use any water. As described in the previous section, there are two components that comprise the fixed

!m N BS Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 14
e Prepared by NBS — August 2020



meter charge: the capacity component and the customer component. Using the costs allocated to each
meter size from Figure 8 and Figure 9, the calculations of the monthly charge for all customer classes
based on meter size are shown in Figure 14.

Figure 14. Fixed Meter Charges for FY 2021/22

Y 2021/22

T

Number of Meters by

2.5 inch

s/Bx3/4 |
inch |

Class and Size’ |

3/4 inch 2inch | Hydrant' 3inch 4inch 6inch | Binch

Single Family Residential 1] 413 75 36 0 1 0 0 0 1,063
Multi Family Residential® 82 1] 2 5 6 i 0 5 0 [1] 101
Commerical® 71 0 37 13 29 5 21 3 (] 1 180
Industrial 0 0 0 o 1 0 0 1] 0 [1] 1
Institutional 5 ] 2 1 1 0 1 2 0 0 12
Irrigation 12 0 3 2 2 0 1] Q 0 1] 19
Unknown Connection Type ] 0 0 [} 9] 0 0 a o 0 a
*Total Méters/Accounts - 708 0 457 96 75 6 23 -0 0 1 1,376
Hydraulic Capacity Factor® 1.00 1.00 2.50 5.00 8.00 17.50 17.50 31.50 65.00 140.00
Total Equivalent Meters 708 1] 1,143 480 600 105 403 315 0 140 3,893
Maonthly Fixed Service Charges i
Customer Costs (§/Acct/mo.)® $6.81 $6.81 $6.81 $6.81 $6.81 $6.81 $6.81 $6.81 $6.81 $6.81
| _Capacity Costs ($/Acct/mo.)® $11.11 $11.41 $21.77 $55.54 $88.87 $194.40 $194.40 $349.92 $722.06| $1,555.21
i Total Monthly Meter Charge $17.92 $17.92 $34.58 36235 $95.68 | $20121 ) $20121 435673 |  $72887 | $1562.02

Variable Charges

Currently, the District uses a uniform volumetric rate for all customers and the proposed rates maintain
this structure. Given the single source of water supply, this rate is appropriate for the District. Using the
costs allocated to volumetric charges, which were previously shown in Figure 13, Figure 15 shows the
calculation of the per unit volumetric charge for each customer class.

Figure 15. Calculated Variable Charges for FY 2021/22

Water Target Rev. Uniform
Number of - . 25 of Total Rate : Proposed Rate
Customer Classes : Consumption | Req't from Vol. Commodity
Meters Ry Revenue P Structure

(ccfiyr) Charges Rates (S /ccf)
Single Family Residential? 1,063 124,878 | $ 841,551 36% $6.74 Uniform
Multi Family Residential? 101 38,296 258,078 11% $6.74 Uniform
Commercial? 180 69,126 465,837 20% $6.74 Uniform
Industrial 1 3,612 24,344 1% $6.74 Uniform
Institutional 12 8,432 56,823 2% $6.74 Uniform
Irrigation 19 847 5,710 0% $6.74 Uniform
Fire Service 26 0 - 0% $6.74 Uniform
Total 1,402 245,192 [ § 1,652,343 70%

1. The number of meters by size and class was provided by District staff. Source files: MOM Vega Customer Report FY 2019.xlsx & MOM

Pajaro Customer Report FY 2019.xlsx .

2. Meter counts and revenue include .34 customers in the Springfield area - 31SFR, 1 MFR, and 2 Commercial. According to the District, these
customers are charged a flat fee of 525 per month and onlyhave a few meters (sizes are unknown), but none are in use.
3. Water consumption is 10% less than FY 2018/19 consumption by customer class to account for conservation.

E. Current vs. Proposed Water Rates

One of the District’s key décisions at the beginning of this study was to maintain the existing rate structure
that consists of a fixed rate based on meter size (regardless of customer class) and a uniform volumetric
rate based on monthly water consumption. The existing rate structure also collects 30% of costs from
fixed charges and 70% from volumetric rates.

" Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 15
Prepared by NBS — August 2020

ONB

P. 67



P. 58

Figure 16 presents a comparison of the current and proposed water rates for FY 2021/22 through FY
2025/26 for each meter size. Projected rates for each fiscal year! reflect adjustments based on the cost-
of-service analysis that is used to establish the rates for the first year in the five-year rate plan. In the
subsequent four years of the rate planning period, proposed charges are simply adjusted by the proposed
adjustment in total rate revenue needed to meet projected revenue requirements. More detailed tables
on the development of the proposed water rates are documented in Appendix A.

Figure 16. Current and Proposed Water Rates

00 00 00 8.00 00

Fixed Charges - All Users [Excl, Commerclal Fire)
5/8x3/4inch $16.86 $17.92 $20.24 $22.47 $24.27 $25.48
3/4inch $16.86 $17.92 $20.24 $22.47 $24.27 $25.48
linch $31.03 $34.58 $39.07 $43.37 $46.84 $49.18
1.5inch $54.64 $62.35 $70.46 $78.21 $84.46 $88.69
2inch $82,98 $95.68 $108.11 $120,01 $129,61 $136.09
3inch $172.71 520121 $227.37 $252,38 $272,57 $286.19
4inch $304.95 $356,73 $403.10 $447.45 $483.24 $507.40
6inch $621.39 $728.87 4$823.62 $914.22 $987.36 4$1,036.73
8inch $1,329.82 $1,562.02 $1,765.08 $1,959.24 $2,115.98 $2,221.78
Springfield Customers® $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00
Hydrant Meter Charge (21/2 inch) $50.00 $201.21 $227.37 $252.38 $272.57 $286.19

Volumetric Charges .
Rate per hcf [ sses [ se7a | s762 [ $845s | s9a3 | sas9

1. Fixed charges shown are forinside District customers only, without additional charges for additional units/rooms/spaces.
2. Valumetric charges shown are forinside District customers onlywith standard service charges.
3. PerDistrict staff, the fixed charges for Springfield customers will remain the same,

F. Comparison of Current and Proposed Monthly Water Bills

Figure 17 and Figure 18 compare a range of monthly water bills for the current and proposed water rates
during the first year of implementation for single-family residential customers (with a 5/8 x 3/4-inch
meter) and commercial customers (with a 2-inch meter). These monthly hills are based on typical meter
sizes, and the average consumption levels for each customer class are highlighted.

11 The initial rate adjustment and all future rate adjustments are scheduled to be effective on January 1% of each year.

(\w N B " Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 16
D) Prepared by NBS — August 2020



P. 59

Figure 17. Monthly Bill Comparison for Single Family Customers

Single-Family Residential Water Bill Comparison
Current vs. Proposed 2021/22 Rate Alternative (5/8 x 3/4" meter)
$200 4
O Current Rates
$175 . : Average
M Proposed Rates SUMMER Bl
(13.6 hef/mo.)
$150 - @
Average
ANNUAL Bl
8125 - . : == ; s @ (9.8 heffmo.)
= )
Average I\,o!
%51“" 1 e WINTER BIII [~ -
= (6.2 hef/mo.)
$75 4
i
$50 |- |
|
|
525 - |
|
s0 H |
0.0 3.0 5.0 6.2 9.8 13.6 20,0 25.0
Monthly Water Consumption {HCF)
Figure 18. Monthly Water Bill Comparison for Commercial Customers
Commercial Water Bill Comparison
Current vs. Proposed 2021/22 Rate Alternative (2" meter)
$700 -
O Current Rates
$600 M Proposed Rates : Co R Average -
SUMMER Bl
(35,5 hef/mo)

5500 : : o Average ! !
ANNUALBIII
{32.0 heffmo.)

= 5400 .- . Average = .
= WINTER Bill
é (24.0 hef/mo.) 3
o -
= |
$300 | |
$200 & |
i E
I |
$100 - - [ i
L { £
P 4 ‘
B :
: | 1B , i I =
0.0 7.5 15,0 24.0 32,0 39,5 60,0 80.0
Monthly Water Consumption (HCF)
(\“ N BS‘ Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 17
e Prepared by NBS — August 2020



G. Drought Rate Analysis

Should consumption decrease from current levels and the District Board declares a more severe drought
stage, the District is still obligated to meet its annual net revenue requirements to keep the utility
operating and functional. Drought rates have been developed to address this possibility so that the
District’s water utility would still be kept whole, financially. These drought rates recognize that some costs

will also decrease and have taken this reduced revenue need into consideration.

Expense Name

riable Portion

Utllltles Well Slte 157 896
Water System - Repair & Maint 208,980

Total:

Figure 20 Calculatlon of Commodlty Costs at Various Levels of Conservation

366,876 | $
1. Expenses primarilyrelated to the volume ofwater produced.

S 162,949 | $ 168 163 | $ 173,544 $ 179 098
215,667 222,568 229,691 237,041

403,235 | $

T g e i

378,616 | $

Figure 19. Expenses Directly Impacted by Conservation
| FY 2021/22 | FY 2022/23 ; FY 2023/21

3 ;MM

FY 2024/25 ‘ FY 2025/26

.uk‘i!-

390,732 | $

416,139

Figure 19 shows the expenses directly impacted by conservation over the next five years. Because these
expenses are a significant portion of the District’s budget, drought rates will offset the loss of variable
revenue in different stages of drought severity.

Figure 20 shows the updated FY 2021/22 commodity costs and rates for each of the District’s drought
stages. This calculation is performed for all levels of conservation and summarized in Figure 21 for the
next five years.

Baseline Rate 245,192 ccf 0% $ - -|$§ 1,652,343 $6.74
Drought Stage 1 220,673 ccf -10% (36,688) - 1,615,655 $7.32
Drought Stage 2 196,154 ccf -20% (73,375) 25,000 1,603,968 $8.18
Drought Stage 3 171,635 ccf -30% (110,063) 50,000 1,592,280 $9.28
Drought Stage 4 147,115 ccf -40% (146,750) 75,000 1,580,593 $10.74

(366,876) 150,000 8,044,839

1. Target revenue req't. has been adjusted for the reduction in annual water consumption and subsequent reduction In annual watersales.

2, Total FY 2018/19 water consumed for all customer classes.

3. Reduced expenses that are a direct result when the District sells less water.
4. Addition drought-related expenses at each drought stage.

ONB

" Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report
Prepared by NBS — August 2020

18

P. 60



P. 61

Figure 21. Proposed 5-Year Drought Rate Schedule
; b 0 0 0 D 0
0 00 00 8.00 00
Proposed Rates, Non-Drought
Users Subject to Uniform Commodity Charge:
Rate per hcf -- $6.74 $7.62 58.45 $9,13 59,59
Proposed Rates, Drought Stage 1
Users Subject to Uniform Commodity Charge:
Rate per hcf - $7.32 $8.27 59,18 $9.92 $10.41
|Proposed Rates, Drought Stage 2
Users Subject to Uniferm Commodity Charge:
Rate per hef - $8.18 $9.24 $10.26 $11.08 $11.63
Proposed Rates, Drought Stage 3
Users Subject to Uniform Commaodity Charge:
Rate per hef -- $9.28 $10.48 511,64 $12.57 $13.20
Proposed Rates, Drought Stage 4
Users Subject to Uniform Commadity Charge:
Rate per hef - $10.74 $12.14 $13.48 $14.55 $15.28

;'m N BS Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District - Draft Water Rate Study Report 19
i Prepared by NBS — August 2020



P. 62

Section 3. Recommendations & Next Steps

A. Consultant Recommendations
NBS recommends the District take the following actions:

Approve and accept this Study: NBS recommends the Board of Directors formally approve and adopt this
Study and its recommendations and proceed with the steps required to implement the proposed rates.
This report will provide documentation of the rate study analyses and the basis for analyzing potential
changes to future rates.

Implement Recommended Levels of Rate Adjustments and Proposed Rates: Based on successfully
meeting the Proposition 218 procedural requirements, the District Board should proceed with
implementing the 5-year schedule of proposed rates and rate adjustments previously shown in Figure 16.
These new rates will adequately fund revenue requirements, maintain continuity in the rate design, and
ensure the continued financial health of the District’s water utility.

B. Next Steps

Annually Review Rates and Revenue: Any time an agency adopts new utility rates or rate structures,
those new rates should be closely monitored over the next several years to ensure the revenue generated
is sufficient to meet the annual revenue requirements. Changing economic and water consumption
patterns underscore the need for this review, as well as potential and unseen changing revenue
requirements—particularly those related to environmental regulations that can significantly affect capital
improvements and repair and replacement costs.

Note: The attached Appendix provides more detailed information on the analysis of the water revenue
requirements, cost-of-service analysis and cost allocations, and the rate design analyses that have been
summarized in this report.

C. NBS’ Principal Assumptions and Considerations

In preparing this report and the opinions and recommendations included herein, NBS has relied on a
number of principal assumptions and considerations with regard to financial matters, conditions, and
events that may occur in the future. This information and these assumptions, including District’s budgets,
capital improvement costs, and information from District staff were provided by sources we believe to be
reliable, although NBS has not independently verified this data.

While we helieve NBS" use of such information and assumptions is reasonable for the purpose of this
report and its recommendations, some assumptions will invariably not materialize as stated herein and
may vary significantly due to unanticipated events and circumstances. Therefore, the actual results can
he expected to vary from those projected to the extent that actual future conditions differ from those
assumed by us or provided to us by others.

(k\ N B " Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report 20
A rﬁ Prepared by NBS — August 2020



Section 4. Abbreviations and Acronyms?

Alt.
Avg.
AWWA
CAP
CCF
CCl
COM
Comm.
COS
COSA
CPI

Clp
Excl.
ENR
EDU
Exp.

FY
GPM
HCF
Ind.
Irr.
LAIF
MFR
Mo.
N/A
0&M
Prop 218

Req't

Res.

Rev.

R&R

SFR

SRF Loan
V./Vs. [vs.

Alternative

Average

American Water Works Association
Capacity

Hundred Cubic Feet (same as HCF); equal to 748 gallons
Construction Cost Index

Commodity

Commercial

Cost-of-Service

Cost-of-Service Analysis

Cansumer Price Index

Capital Improvement Program

Exclude

Engineering News Record

Equivalent Dwelling Unit

Expense

Fiscal Year (e.g., July 1st to June 30th)
Gallons per Minute

Hundred Cubic Feet; equal to 748 gallons or 1 CCF
Industrial

Irrigation

Local Agency Investment Fund
Multi-Family Residential

Month

Not Available or Not Applicable
Operational and Maintenance Expenses

Proposition 218 (1996) — State Constitutional amendment expanded restrictions of local

government revenue collections.
Requirement

Residential

Revenue

Rehabilitation and Replacement
Single Family Residential

State Revolving Fund Loan
Versus

12 This section identifies abbreviations and acronyms that may be used in this report. This section has not been viewed, arranged,
or edited by an attorney, nor should it be relied on as legal advice. The intent of this section is to support the recognition and
analysis of this report. Any questions regarding clarification of this document should be directed to staff or an attorney
specializing in this particular subject matter.

ONB

* Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Draft Water Rate Study Report
Prepared by NBS — August 2020

21

P. 63



P. 64

Appendix A. Detailed Water Study Tables and Figures

" Pajaro / Sunny Mesa Community Services District — Water Rate Study Report 25
ONBS :

Prepared by NBS — August 2020



RESOLUTION NO. 08-01-20

AUTHORIZING PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO
APPLY FOR FUNDING AND DESIGNATE OFFICER TO SIGN AND SUBMIT
APPLICATION FOR FUNDING FROM THE SAFE DRINKING WATER STATE
REVOLVING FUND

WHEREAS, the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District has the authority to
construct, operate, and maintain the Springfield Water System; and

WHEREAS, the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District desires to enhance
the provision and protection of the drinking water supplied to the consumers of
Springfield Water System, therefore;

RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE Pajaro/Sunny Mesa
Community Services District (the “Entity”), AS FOLLOWS:

The General Manager, Don Rosa (the “Authorized Representative”) or designee is
hereby authorized and directed to sign and file, for and on behalf of the Entity, a
Financial Assistance Application for a financing agreement from the State Water
Resources Control Board for the planning, design, and construction of Springfield Water
System Improvements and Consolidation (the “Project”).

This Authorized Representative, or his designee, is designated to provide the
assurances, certifications, and commitments required for the financial assistance
application, including executing a financial assistance agreement from the State Water
Resources Control Board and any amendments or changes thereto.

The Authorized Representative, or his designee, is designated to represent the Entity in
carrying out the Entity’s responsibilities under the financing agreement, including
certifying disbursement requests on behalf of the Entity and compliance with applicable
state and federal laws.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27th of August, 2020, upon motion of Director ,
seconded by Director , and carried by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Harry Wiggins, President

P

65



CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, Don Rosa, as the duly elected Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Pajaro/Sunny
Mesa Community Services District, Monterey County, California, do hereby certify that
the above Resolution is a full, true and correct copy of said Resolution passed and
adopted by the Board of Directors at a meeting held on the 27th of August, 2020, and
that said Resolution is now spread upon the minutes of said Board.

Secretary of the Board of Directors

P:

66



RESOLUTION NO. 08-02-20

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PAJARO/SUNNY MESA -
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING APPLICATION FOR PER CAPITA
GRANT FUNDS

WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the
responsibility by the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of the
Per Capita Grant Program, setting up necessary procedures governing application; and

WHEREAS, said procedureé established by the State Department of Parks and
Recreation require the grantee’s Governing Body to certify by resolution the approval of
project application before submission of said application to the State; and

WHEREAS, the grantee will enter into a contract with the State of California to complete
project;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby:
1. Approves the filing of project application for Per Capita program grant project; and

2. Certifies that said grantee has or will have available, prior to commencement of
project work utilizing Per Capita funding, sufficient funds to complete the project; and

3. Certifies that the grantee has or will have sufficient funds to operate and maintain the
project, and

4. Certifies that all projects proposed will be consistent with the park and recreation
element of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District general or recreation
plan (PRC §80063(a)), and

5. Certifies that these funds will be used to supplement, not supplant, local revenues in
existence as of June 5, 2018 (PRC §80062(d)), and 6. Certifies that it will comply with
the provisions of §1771.5 of the State Labor Code, and

7. (PRC §80001(b)(8)(A-G)) To the extent practicable, as identified in the “Presidential
Memorandum--Promoting Diversity and Inclusion in Our National Parks, National
Forests, and Other Public Lands and Waters,” dated January 12, 2017, the
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District will consider a range of actions that
include, but are not limited to, the following: _
(A) Conducting active outreach to diverse populations, particularly minority, low
income, and disabled populations and tribal communities, to increase awareness
within those communities and the public generally about specific programs and
opportunities.
(B) Mentoring new environmental, outdoor recreation, and conservation leaders to
increase diverse representation across these areas.

P.

67



(C) Creating new partnerships with state, local, tribal, private, and nonprofit
organizations to expand access for diverse populations.

(D) Identifying and implementing improvements to existing programs to increase
visitation and access by diverse populations, particularly minority, low-income, and
disabled populations, and tribal communities.

(E) Expanding the use of multilingual and culturally appropriate materials in public
communications and educational strategies, including through social media
strategies, as appropriate, that target diverse populations.

(F) Developing or expanding coordinated efforts to promote youth engagement and
empowerment, including fostering new partnerships with diversity-serving and youth-
serving organizations, urban areas, and programs.

(G) Identifying possible staff liaisons to diverse populations.

8. Agrees that to the extent practicable, the project will provide workforce education and
training, contractor, and job opportunities for disadvantaged communities (PRC
§80001(b)(5)).

9. Certifies that the grantee shall not reduce the amount of funding otherwise available
to be spent on parks or other projects eligible for funds under this division in its
jurisdiction. A one-time allocation of other funding that has been expended for parks or
other projects, but which is not available on an ongoing basis, shall not be considered
when calculating a recipient’s annual expenditures. (PRC §80062(d)).

10. Certifies that the grantee has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General
Provisions contained in the contract shown in the Procedural Guide; and

11. Delegates the authority to the General Manager, or designee to conduct all
negotiations, sign and submit all documents, including, but not limited to applications,
agreements, amendments, and payment requests, which may be necessary for the
completion of the grant scope; and

12. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Pajaro Sunny Mesa
Community Services District on August 271", 2020 upon motion by Director
seconded by Director , and carried by the following vote, to wit:

Ayes:

Noes:

Absent:

P

68



Harry Wiggins, President
Board of Directors

ATTEST:
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, Don Rosa, as the duly elected Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Pajaro/Sunny
Mesa Community Services District, Monterey County, California, do hereby certify that
the above Resolution is a full, true and correct copy of said Resolution passed and
adopted by the Board of Directors at a meeting held on the 27" day of August 2020,
and that said Resolution is now spread upon the minutes of said Board.

Secretary of the Board of Directors

P.

69



P. 70

California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, and Outdoor Access for All Act
of 2018 - Per Capita Grant Program

County Jurisdiction Allocation
Mendocino Brooktrails CSD $ 177,952
Mendocino City of Fort Bragg $ 177,952
Mendocino City of Point Arena $ 177,952
Mendocino City of Ukiah $ 177,952
Mendocino City of Willits $ 177,952
Mendocino Comptche CSD $ 177,952
Mendocino Mendocino Coast RPD $ 177,952
Merced City of Atwater $ 177,952
Merced City of Dos Palos $ 177,952
Merced City of Gustine $ 177,952
Merced City of Livingston $ 177,952
Merced City of Los Banos $ 177,952
Merced Cify of Merced $ 177,952
Modoc City of Alturas $ 177,952
Mono Town of Mammoth Lakes $ 177,952
Monterey Carmel Valley RPD $ 177,952
Monterey City of Carmel-by-the-Sea $ 177,952
Monterey City of Del Rey Oaks $ 177,952
Monterey City of Gonzales $ 177,952
Monterey City of Greenfield $ 177,952
Monterey City of King City $ 177,952
Monterey City of Marina $ 177,952
Monterey City of Monterey -|1$ 177,952
Monterey City of Pacific Grove $ 177,952
Monterey City of Salinas $ 177,952
Monterey City of Sand City $ 177,952
Monterey City of Seaside $ 177,952
Monterey City of Soledad $ 177,952
Monterey Greenfield Public RD $ 177,952
Monterey North County RD $ 177,952
Monterey Pajaro CSD $ 177,952
Monterey Soledad-Mission RD $ 177,952
Monterey Spreckels Memorial District $ 177,952
Napa City of American Canyon $ 177,952
Napa City of Calistoga $ 177,952
Napa City of Napa $ 177,952
Napa City of St Helena $ 177,952
Napa Town of Yountville $ 177,952

Page 9 of 28 July 1, 2020



Staff Report — August 27, 2020

Department of Parks and Recreation — Office of Grants and Local Services (OGALS)
Per Capita Program has funds eligible for capital outlay only, including park
rehabilitation, creation, and improvements to local government parks.

Options to utilize funds:

1. Demolition of existing metal building (allowed only if a new feature is put in its
place) ,

Build new park maintenance equipment storage

Back concrete wall would have to be built to complete (100 feet) fence.

Cost approximation $60,000 demolition

Cost approximation $65,000 concrete wall

Cost approximation $8,900 storage unit

2. Netting on entire length of south side of park
e Cost approximation $30,000 (additional $14,000 if building removed)

3. Security Cameras and Lighting
e Cost approximation: $20,000 cameras
e Cost approximation: $10,000 lighting

P:

71



PAJARO/SUNNY MESA

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
136 San Juan Road Royal Oaks, CA 95076
(831) 722-1389 e (831) 663-2181 e Fax (831) 722-2137

PUBLIC NOTICE

The Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District hereby gives notice of a public hearing to
be held Thursday, October 22", 2020 at 5:45 p.m. to discuss proposed rates for lighting
assessments in the Pajaro/Hudson Landing/Struve Road areas. To reduce the spread of
COVID-19, members of the public may listen to meeting via teleconference by calling 1-425-
436-6355 and entering passcode 407147 and then pound sign (#). There will be no in-person
participation in the meeting under the authority of Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-
20. You may also submit written comments in writing either at District office in person or by
email by 2:00 on October 22, 2020. The Board of Directors shall hear and consider all objections
and protests, if any, to said charges and may adopt, revise, change, reduce, or modify any
assessment, provided that in no case may the Board increase any assessment over and above
the charges stated. All interested persons may appear and object to any said assessment at
the above hearing. A majority will cause the assessment to be abandoned as provided by law.

The proposed assessment for each parcel will fund the cost of the Pajaro Lighting District.
The estimated proposed total assessment charges for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year is $41,096.70

The proposed assessment on your parcel for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year is $29.46

NO CHANGE FROM PREVIOUS YEAR

Any inquiries concerning the assessment and any protest agalnst the assessment may be
mailed to:

PAJAROISUNNY MESA CONMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
ATTN: DON ROSA
136 SAN JUAN ROAD
ROYAL OAKS, CA 95076
(831)722-1389 / FAX (831)722-2137
Email: info@pajarosunnymesa.com

Please do not send payment at this time.
This assessment will appear on your 2020-2021 Property Tax Statement.

Thank you

P

12



P. 73

PAJARO LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

There are 213 lights in the assessment district

793 Parcels
‘Residential
-Commercial
*Industrial

No projected P.G. & E. rate increase in 2020-2021
(Increase on L.E.D. October 2015 rate schedule)

Monterey County provides list of current parcels to District
upon request

PSMCSD sends out information letter with amount of

assessment determined by Monterey County EDU schedule,
which is included on property tax bill

Al lights converted to L.E.D. in October of 2015



LIGHTING ASSESSMENT YEARLY COST COMPARISON

2020-2021]2019-2020[2018-2019] 2017-2018] 2016-2017 | 2015-2016 | 2014-2015
$ 2046[$ 2946 |9% 3162[$ 3166 |$ 31.18|% 3496|$ 34.96
58.92 58.92 |  63.24 63.32 62.36 69.62 69.62
117.84 | 117.84 | 12648 | 12664 | 12473 | 139.82| 139.82
147.30 | 147.30| 15810| 158.30 [ 155.91 174.78 | 174.78
176.76 | 176.76 | 189.72| 189.96 | 187.09| 209.74 | 209.74
20622 | 206.22 | 221.34| 22162 | 21827 | 24470 24470
23568 | 23568 | 252.96| 25328 | 249.46| 279.66| 279.66
294.60
2020-2021
Assessment Parcels Total
S 29.46 610 $ 17,970.60
5 58.92 64 S 3,770.88
$ 117.84 22 $ 2,592.48
S 147.30 62 $ 9,132.60
S 176.76 11 § 1,944.36
S 206.22 1S 206.22
S 235.68 22 S 5,184.96
S 294.60 1S 294.60
793 $ 41,096.70

$29.46 per EDU (Equivalent Dwelling Units)

P

14



P. 75

STAFF REPORT Aug. 24™, 2020
STAND-BY GENERATORS

ALTERNATIVES TO FULL SCOPE- POSSIBLE COST SAVINGS

OPTION 1: Delete 4 generators from well sites, add mobile generator and equip the sites with transfer
switches and common/modular plug-ins.

Pajaro Well # 1 110,000
Berta Well # 1 48,000
Sunny Mesa Well Site 52,000
Moss Landing Well Site 59,000
Up-front Savings $ 269,000

Added Costs:

Mobile Generator 90,000
Transfer switches and plugs 76,500
Tow Vehicle 60,000
Labor (possibility of 7 -day outage). 7,000
Additional Cost $233,500
Net Savings $35,500

OPTION 2: Remove four smaller generators from project, that serve booster sites with a total
connection count of 21, population of roughly 55. No portable generator purchased; these customers
would not have water for the duration of outage.

Andreas Estates 52,000
Covenant | 38,000
Kari Ln. . 38,000
Celeste 38,000

Savings $166,000



P. 16

‘061 |ejo} ‘dn-ubis ajow auQ
‘Jo1em pepog Buinieoal Ajjuaiing ale sawoy g8l 'Speoy uoslaqio/uassuar/ynig/pleybulds

109loid Jareppn

uoday ON ‘“Wied swWoH a|iqoy BuipueT ssoly ‘walsAg Jalepn pleubuldg papiog AlunwiwoD N
epusby up Apnig a1ey I81BAA 8Y} SSNosIa Apnig s1ey Jalepn
'S30 [eD Aq s|qibiaul
paulwIalep usaq sey aouejsisse Joj uoneolddy ue|d uoneBii plezeH Jeisesig-ald e
epusby up “WINT4 pue Ajunon Aslajuoly 0} UOISSILIQNS o) Ue[d uonebip Jasesiq e sjelauss) ue|d uonebiniy piezey
"020¢ Aenige- ul 44 8y} ul }salsiul
epusby uQ | ou o3 anp ueld aAljewss)e ue ul Jaylebol Bupliom aie yelg pue Jebes i wo] ‘Jesuibug 1oLsig siojelauan) Aouablawg
‘pepaau I oue)lsisse pue uoluido Jisy} Joj adod pue ‘uenesey ‘lyouelg o} usyods
sey pue ‘Buimainal Ajjualing sl 4elisS "06°691 ‘62$ JUNOW-0ZEZ# 1UN0DOY 183y aouejeg
yoday ON | "siewoisno Jamag esay Auung [eulbLio ayj 0} papunjal 8q 01 SI Jey} ssluow Buipjoy si JoL3sI[ Jamag ess Auung
‘poso0 suewal
Nied 2yl 0202 ‘&1 1snbny Aepl4 papus ‘dn-yem pue niyj saup ‘welbold younT Jswwng
020z 1shbBny "pPaso[0 sulewsal yled oleled Mled oleled
'020¢C ‘92
0z0z i1snBny | 1snBny uo psinpayds ||eo 80USI3JU0D AJYJUOIN "MSIASI Japun s}esoed [eloueuld
pue uonewIoU| [eJauas) ‘uojedddy uoionisuo) — juels) Buiuue|d pieybuudsg e
‘0202 ‘sl € 1snbny si [eob ucns|dwo) "pajosjusip
0Z0z 1snBny | pue pajji usaq SeY MUE] ‘pa)lse] Usa( SBY UONJO8UU0D YU | MeN —JuBlD olefed e
‘olefed el dINARYI @ pleybundg juels Buluueld 4¥S Y SAOY SUEQT] ® SUBID
‘Pepaau se Jodal pue syue} ayj jo Ajubajul ey} Jojluow 0} uonoadlp usAlb sey pieog
‘Bunepdn pasu |m ‘piq Jo) Ino of 108l01d uswaoe|day
uoday oN 01 Apeal si 108lold ‘s18|dwod %00 siuswnooq Buussulbug jses A Ag paiedsud soop pig MUBe ] peaymolly
ISNOdS3A

J3NNV1d 40 31vd

SNLvis

JldOL

0202 ‘Lz 3snbny
1¥0d3d SNOILVIAdO 1O14d1SId




Usage Comparison in Gallons

2013-2020

Water Systems Jul-1 Jul-18 Jul-19 Jul-20
Pajaro 8,429.960| 8,742,624 7,777,704 6,855,420
Normco 3,532,804| 4,105,772 3,944,204 3,278,484
Sunny Mesa 2,905,980 3,394,424 3,347,300 2,717,484
Moss Landing 2,606,780 2,914,956 2,500,564 2,644,180
Vega 1,867,756| 1,662,804 1,847,560 1,492,260
Vierra Estates 304,436 371,008 498,916 495,924
Springfield (pumped) 721,072 683,672 645,973 705,962
Langley/Valle Pacificol 344,080 371,008 362,032 313,412
Blackie 299,200 314,908 337,348 326,876
District Total 21,012,068| 22,561,176|  21,261,601| 18,830,002
Water Systems Jul-13 Jul-20 Percentage
Pajaro 11,420,180 6,855,420\ -40.0%
Normco 5,167,184 3,278,484 -36.6%
Sunny Mesa 3,927,726 2,717,484\ -30.8%
Moss Landing 3,508,120 2,644,180\l -24.6%
Vega 2,464,989 1,492,260(\ -39.5%
Vierra Estates 553,520 495,924\ -10.4%
Springfield (pumped) 667,964 705,962 |/ 5.7%
Langley/Valle Pacifico 477,972 313,412\ -34.4%
Blackie 434,588 326,876|W -24.8%
District Total 28,622,243 18,830,002 |y -34.2%

S:\Admin Files\Usage Comparison Reports\Usage Comp. 2020\Gallons Sold Comparison July 2020

P 47



GALLONS

B, T8

Large Systems

800,000 Small Systems
700,000
10,000,000
600,000
9,000,000
500,000
wy
=
3 400,000
8,000,000 )
300,000
7,000,000 200,000
i B 100,000
6,000,000 g B
: Vierra Estates  Springfield  Langley/Valle
oy (pumped) Pacifico
5,000,000 j =
®ul-17 wul-18 Jul-19 Jul-20
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
0

@Jul-17 oJul-18 TGJul-18 Jul-20




